RelmR

Consolidated Income Statement

BE-ZE--H+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
THERT TET
HK$°000 HK$'000
MEMA Interest income 6 1,135,362 1,032,602
FMBEXH Interest expense 7 (323,263) (177,789)
2R 2 WA Net interest income 812,099 854,813
B R ERR 2R A Net premiums earned 8 533,536 658,854
H A Other income 9 232,471 197,865
ZFWA Operating income 1,578,106 1,711,532
B R [E k%4 Net claims written back 8 6,642 17,618
B s Net commission expenses 8 (162,541) (108,000)
Z2ELTH Operating expenses 10 (219,267) (191,932)
RTRERTHE E4 A Operating profit before impairment 1,202,940 1,429,218
RRORER R (%) Write-back/(charge) of
loan impairment allowances 13 5,680 (3,141)
ZE R Operating profit 1,208,620 1,426,077
7 iy K R 1) SE g ) Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity 23 2,450 2,830
BRBL DR A Profit before taxation 1,211,070 1,428,907
I Taxation 14(a) (85,524) (173,225)
S R F Profit for the year 1,125,546 1,255,682
B 3@ F(S5) ¢ Profit/(loss) attributable to:
RN BIREZR Equity holders of the Company 1,125,393 1,255,731
BRI IR 2R Non-controlling interests 153 (49)
1,125,546 1,255,682

SNME2NTUREMDI N ZA M S IRKE —F5

financial statements.

The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-ZF——F+-A=+—HLEE

for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
TET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RNEE A Profit for the year 1,125,546 1,255,682
Hp2mkas - Other comprehensive income:
A SIS Available-for-sale securities:
— AEIU S E — net unrealised gains 32 357,875 107,632
— HENLQAFEEDERA — fair value changes transferred to
T income statement on disposal 32 (38,230) (51,884)

— BE4H — amortisation 32 39 663

— I — tax effect 32 (52,748) (9,316)
PE X - Cash flow hedges:

— EETHEMEERE — net gains arising from hedges recognised

NINEOp Pl Ergeetit in other comprehensive income 32 - 2,396

—BRARERE — fair value changes transferred to

NEEZ D) income statement 32 5,495 10,195

— I — tax effect 32 (907) (2,078)
HEE ML S FE AR Exchange differences on translation of

LR EE foreign operations

— B AR — subsidiary 1,015 5,366

— HRERHISER — jointly controlled entity 32 5,276 (3,784)
N HEEEHISS R E4m  Share of other comprehensive (losses)/

(S51), ez income of a jointly controlled entity 32 (32) 279
£ B 2[RI Rl S5 4% 2R A Release of fair value reserve and translation

& EIH) A FEE R reserve upon disposal of investment in

LR ajointly controlled entity 32 (7,733) =
RNEEE b EBE Other comprehensive income for the year,

B H0BR I net of tax 270,050 59,519
rEELEYE LS Total comprehensive income for the year 1,395,596 1,315,201
BME2EKE L Total comprehensive income attributable to:

AR Equity holders of the Company 1,395,342 1,314,713

AR HI R R Non-controlling interests 254 488

1,395,596 1,315,201

F1NE2NTUREHDT N ZA M S IRKE —F5

financial statements.

The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

F=B-—=—F+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2012

2012 2011
THET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B’ ASSETS
NeMERRe Cash and short-term funds 17 9,715,544 10,245,165
M UF B KSC R Interest and remittance receivables 18 469,590 590,998
TTESRMIEA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,443,013 1,559,187
DI E A Loan portfolio, net 20 25,895,399 33,135,818
AR Investment securities:
—AHEE — available-for-sale 21(a) 5,812,827 2,303,703
—RAEIH — held-to-maturity 21(b) 9,237,808 8,269,148
H R | SRR R Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 - 130,045
RN~ e REMARRE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 39,641 27,097
[&E R 7E Fixed assets 25 29,128 31,274
BIRE R Reinsurance assets 28 222,007 208,911
BrERE Total assets 52,864,957 56,501,346
R LIABILITIES
RIS F) 2 Interest payable 26 235,756 237,244
RIATIRIN ~ RS T2 Accounts payable, accrued expenses
Hfth 51 5 and other liabilities 27 4,465,116 4,274,883
MESRMTIA Derivative financial instruments 19 175,095 139,582
L EAFL IRt (R Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 101,587 134,785
156 JE R I R Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 109,404 52,672
{RE& 1 {5 Insurance liabilities 28 1,545,863 1,630,595
2 AITHRSIES Debt securities issued 29 36,404,627 41,097,207
B A{TIERBIES Mortgage-backed securities issued 30 214,672 367,137
B E Total liabilities 43,252,120 47,934,105
& EQUITY
W58 AN G Capital and reserves attributable to
RS R fif % the equity holders:
i Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
{RER 4 7l Retained profits 5,302,410 5,173,228
EURAR B Proposed dividend 16 750,000 350,000
N1k % contingency reserve 32 977,773 731,562
NEERES Fair value reserve 32 569,109 302,615
PN Hedging reserve 32 (8,656) (13,244)
SCHAER Translation reserve 32 9,778 10,911
9,600,414 8,555,072
IR IR R M A 2 Non-controlling interests in equity 12,423 12,169
N BH Total equity 9,612,837 8,567,241
AR R S8 Total liabilities and equity 52,864,957 56,501,346

BEERET-_E—=FWA+RBE#ERENT] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 April
17 ° 2013.

MRiER Norman T. L. Chan RIEX Eddie W. M. Yue
EBIFEFHTEE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director MITEE Executive Director

BINMNE2N TSN T hEa MSIREFH —29 - The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position

F=B-—=—F+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2012

2011
FHETT
HK$'000
B’ ASSETS
NekEHRE Cash and short-term funds 17 9,588,343 10,121,847
IV G RSNSOI Interest and remittance receivables 18 460,415 578,070
PTESRBTA Derivative financial instruments 19 1,443,013 1,559,187
EREA AR Loan portfolio, net 20 21,943,803 28,006,425
UEHIZ A Investment securities:
— A E — available-for-sale 21(@a) 5,812,827 2,303,703
—REEIH — held-to-maturity 21(0) 9,237,808 8,269,148
NI 3 Interests in subsidiaries 22 3,943,669 4,986,708
H[RE | SRR BT Investment in a jointly controlled entity 23 - 120,554
TR - e R EMAF  Prepayments, deposits and other assets 24 46,520 188,787
& 7E 7 7= Fixed assets 25 29,116 30,949
BIRE &R Reinsurance assets 28 222,372 208,911
BrEEE Total assets 52,727,886 56,374,289
TR LIABILITIES
IVEREAIESS Interest payable 26 235,686 237,128
RIAFRIN ~ RS FF & Accounts payable, accrued expenses
E R and other liabilities 27 4,687,729 4,634,004
PTESRBTA Derivative financial instruments 19 175,095 139,582
X HRFE I A 5 Current income tax liabilities 14(b) 100,563 135,131
136 JE Fit I 61 (3= Deferred income tax liabilities 14(b) 109,103 52,696
RIS A5 Insurance liabilities 28 1,548,076 1,630,595
B AITHRSUES Debt securities issued 29 36,404,627 41,097,207
R EE Total liabilities 43,260,879 47,926,343
= EQUITY
W48 AR AR A Capital and reserves attributable to
Rffs the equity holders:
i &N Share capital 31 2,000,000 2,000,000
REB % Retained profits 5,178,781 5,077,455
EORARE Proposed dividend 16 750,000 350,000
N1 & Contingency reserve 32 977,773 731,562
NEEEE Fair value reserve 32 569,109 302,173
XA Hedging reserve 32 (8,656) (13,244)
N B8 Total equity 9,467,007 8,447,946
AR RN RS Total liabilities and equity 52,727,886 56,374,289

SERDCT T =FNA+RBH#AERZNT] Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 April
T @ 2013.

MRIETR Norman T. L. Chan REX Eddie W. M. Yue
BlEEFMITESE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director HiTES Executive Director

BINE2NAENDT e e MSIREH—32 - The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

ERRBTISERAT —=——#4 107



REN@ AR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-ZE--H+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

RARRER S
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
RIEHIN
R
R R HifE& Non-
NIEE Retained Other controling Jki
capital profits* reserves [IEENS Total
Tr Ti#n Tir Tir Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-5--5-F-H4H Balance as at 1 January 2011 2,000,000 4,911,624 678,735 11,681 7,602,040
RERER/(SH) Profit/(loss) for the year - 1,255,731 = 49) 1,255,682
EEETAATERE A3 Netfairvalue gains of available-for-sale
BHBRHI securities, net of tax 2 - - 47,424 - 47,424
NETIRNE 2R - Net change in cash flow hedges,
EHBRHm net of tax 32 = = 10,513 - 10,513
BEIMSHEER Exchange differences on translation of
LRES foreign operations
—HEAR — subsiciary 2 - - 4,829 537 5,366
— HRER IS — jointly controlled entity 32 - - (3784) - (3784)
AEELARELA Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,255,731 58,982 188 1,315,201
BRERFEAD B Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
RE S 50%3 75% 2 premium earned from retained
RS profits to contingency reserve 2 - (307,140) 307,140 - -
AR ASEEEREET Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 2 - 13,013 (13,013) - -
BR=5-TERS Dividend paid related to 2010 - (350,000) = = (350,000)
F-E--E£+-B=+—-H4%  Balance as at 31 December 2011 2,000,000 5,523,228 1,031,844 12,169 8,567,241
AT EAR Profitfor the year - 1125393 - 153 1,125,546
EHETAATERE T - Netfairvalue gains of available-for-sale
BB securities, net of tax 2 - - 266,904 - 266,904
NeTARaE 28 EMRIIA  Net change in cash flow hedges,
net of tax R - - 4,588 - 4,588
BEEIMLEH =R ER Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations
—EAR — subsidiary 2 - - 914 101 1015
— RERHIEAE — jointly controlled entity 2 = = 5276 - 5,276
HELRRHIEAER Disposal of investment in
ajointly controlled entity 2 - = (7733 - (7733
AEELEREDA Total comprehensive income for the year - 1,125,393 269,949 254 1,395,596
BRERFIEAD BN Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
REHTR 0% 75% E premium earned from retained
AR profits to contingency reserve 32 - (266,266) 266,266 - -
BNk ERREERE RN Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits 2 - 20,055 (20,055) - -
BRZE——ERE Dividend paid related to 2011 - (350,000) - - (350,000)
F-Z--5+-A=+-R4%  Balance as at 31 December 2012 2,000,000 6,052,410 1,548,004 12,423 9,612,837

»  FoE-—&t-A=+-8 SARBEFGL
% 750,000,000 7t (=2 ——4 : 350,000,000 7T)
fENRUR KBRS, -

FMEB2NTURHHDENGAMSIREN—F -

As at 31 December 2012, HK$750 million (2011: HK$350 million) of retained profits was
earmarked as proposed final dividend from retained profits.

The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-Z-—-H+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012

b= TExT
Notes HK$'000

ZELSFREBAERE Cash flows from operating activities

2011
TAT
HK$'000

Z3yl Operating profit 1,208,620 1,426,077
AT ETEL A IFE - Adjustment for:
B A Interest income (1,143,387) (1,043,095)
MEZH Interest expense 262,501 111,620
A& B WA Dividend income 9 (90,135) (65,071)
#rIH Depreciation 10 14,127 8,609
HEBE RS R Loss on disposal of fixed assets - 51
B AITIRSIE AT LE REH Amortisation of discount on
debt securities issued 60,762 66,169
REORE (E1R), 1k & (Write-back)/charge of loan impairment
allowances 13 (5,680) 3,141
Lz [0 B 85 9 BT 3R Recoveries of loans previously written off  20(b) 2,110 2,452
A EIEARRIESE Amortisation of unrealised loss on
2 Bl BRAIE S5 A Y available-for-sale securities transferred
RIS 50 £ to held-to-maturity securities 32 39 663
IEHIE RN M4 Amortisation of premium on
investment securities 7,985 9,830
HER T W 25 Net gain on disposal of investments 12 (90,260) (64,952)
HE R HI SR AU EE Gain on disposal of investment in
a jointly controlled entity 9 (7,137) -
TR TAERNFEED) Change in fair value of
financial instruments (23,558) (5,999)
RIFI R HIRE Change in translation of financial assets
ol A ) under cash flow hedge 32 - 2,396
I AMEE R I E 7R 3T Fair value changes of cash flow hedge
B ATEES) transferred to income statement 32 5,495 10,195
B E Interest received 1,165,156 1,296,840
BIHE Interest paid (263,989) (367,929)
ATEERF kOGN  Cash flows from operating activities before
ZEWSEIERE changes in operating assets and liabilities 1,102,649 1,390,997
REH BB ="AE2 8  Change in time deposits with original
EHTF A 5 maturity of more than three months (8,252,857) 1,101,734
MBOC KA B Change in remittance receivables 99,644 (187,576)
FSEIA - xS R EAME~  Change in prepayments, deposits and
B3 other assets (4,722) 897
WEAET T Change in loan portfolio 7,243,989 2,117,526
RIfFIEIR « N FTSZ R EA  Change in accounts payable, accrued
MEED) expenses and other liabilities 189,979 (16,286)
RIS A2 T Change in insurance liabilities, net (97,828) (147,090)
SNTIOL R Z A Exchange differences (7,707) (25,063)
ZREMEI & Cash generated from operation 273,147 4,235,139
SRR Taxation paid (115,645) (167,889)
KXEWSFFIE 2 Net cash generated from
operating activities 157,502 4,067,250
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SZEWMEmE R Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

2011
T
HK$'000
REFDFEBAESRE Cash flows from investing activities
3K & FE R 72 Purchase of fixed assets 25 (11,982) (22,877)
ML Al B E i 5 Purchase of available-for-sale securities 21(a) (4,161,064) (645,167)
MSEH5 5 = B HiiE 5 Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 21(b) (1,926,101) (1,743,272)
& BB 3 7 BT S 5K Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets - 230
H € HE [E) 5 1| S2 Rk Disposal of a jointly controlled entity 23 137,394 -
& R BE [] A] 4 BB E 5 Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FIT1S 5030 available-for-sale securities 1,059,051 1,867,014
HeEREEEEEEEES  Proceeds from sale and redemption of
Fr 5 3000 held-to-maturity securities 962,170 1,508,858
BT H B IR B Dividend received from
available-for-sale securities 82,313 64,740
SR ED (FTR),/ Fifs Net cash (used in)/generated from
U & %40 investing activities (3,858,219) 1,029,526
AL GRH), Net cash (outflows)/inflows
AR E before financing (3,700,717) 5,096,776
RMEES SIS RE Cash flows from financing activities
RITREL BRI Proceeds from issue of debt securities 29 19,076,997 28,525,186
T [E B, 1TSS 5 Redemption of debt securities issued (23,661,825) (26,707,868)
B AITIRIBIESHE 5K Repayment of mortgage-backed
securities issued 30 (152,465) (1,138,513)
B E Dividend paid 16 (350,000) (350,000)
BRED (FTA),/Fifs Net cash (used in)/generated from
& 28 financing activities (5,087,293) 328,805
NeERERNELEB Net (decrease)/increase in cash
ORI,/ 18 0% 8 and cash equivalents (8,788,010) 5,425,581
FPNUEREFMELWE Beginning cash and cash equivalents 9,986,013 4,545,074
LENINESRERAES Effect of exchange rates on cash and
=E-A1) cash equivalents 6,126 15,358
FRUSRERNESIE Ending cash and cash equivalents 17 1,204,129 9,986,013

FINE2N AN ENGEAEMEIREKA—E6 o The notes on pages 111 to 211 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. “RHIRHE

BERRBIEFARAB(ARA]) REWMEAR
(G [RER D WEAaMSIRE - DIRREEL
2R (FERTMAS ) ANEENS
wREEN(TEEMSREEN]) (BEAAEA
WADRIEEMSREENTEEYM S RE &
mip) - FELAENTEESIHEN D) Rigk) -
EERIAN2URN - AREE R RIZAIHHE
Yl

KRG EMSIMRLALRANEGIGRE - F A
HHEEFRR - LAFEIRNEBA SR E
BAG(EEITESRIR)MEMIELIFE -

BrBITERIREIN - dm il It T 48 & W 55 1R 3% P A2 AR
MEESUBERRITETESAEZROAAF
JE P B2 AR RO B4 — B »

Rl e BAMSREENNMSIRKRE - AR
AETEAZIHE  MERENAAEASI
BERE IR B TR HIt - BERZ HIMHRE
ZHEls  ABRRAUTNEAMSHEREEER
HEls - EEMDEARKEE -

2. FESIHER
2.1. ROEBM SRS EN

(@ T=F——-F—A— BRERNHEN
RABAT

BEEWMSREENET S (BITA) [
B — emAsmiil] - BERSRE
ERAFNFEUENNBAE  REER
ENARELLAHRONGHIER 5
T XUBS XY SRR I 25 4R B 2R o 3X L
BATEBZ MM S IRROBE - X
AEEANM S RRIIRRITRBEERY
0 o

—F-—F- - HENVBFEEHR
BEREM  MNAEREERZM
BB S5 HRE N o

1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs” is a collective term which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”),
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale investment securities, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments) carried at fair value.

The principal accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
Note 4.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

(@) New standards and amendments effective on 1 January
2012

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — “Transfers of Financial
Assets” are intended to promote transparency in the reporting
of transfer transactions and improve users’ understanding of
the risk exposures relating to transfers of financial assets and
the effect of those risks on an entity’s financial position. These
amendments mainly affect disclosures in the financial
statement and no material impact on the financial position or
profit and loss of the Group is expected.

There are no HKFRSs that are effective for the first time for the

financial year beginning on 1 January 2012 that have a material
impact on the Group.
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AW %IREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(b)
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(b) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but
not yet effective

The following new standards and amendments relevant to the
Group have been issued but are not effective for the financial
year beginning on 1 January 2012 and have not been early
adopted:

Amendment to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements” changes the disclosure of items presented in
other comprehensive income in the statement of
comprehensive income. The amendment requires entities to
separate items presented in other comprehensive income
into two groups, based on whether or not they may be
recycled to profit or loss in the future. Items that will not be
recycled will be presented separately from items that may
be recycled in the future. The amendment is applicable to
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 with early
adoption permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of the
amendment and intends to adopt the amendment upon its
effective date.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” addresses the classification,
measurement and recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities and replaces part of HKAS 39.

Financial assets are required to be classified into two
measurement categories: those measured at fair value, and
those measured at amortised cost. The decision is made at
initial recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instrument.

For financial liabilities, the standard retains most of the HKAS
39 requirements. The main change is that, in cases where
the fair value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part
of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the
income statement, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch.

HKFRS 9 is mandatory for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2015 with earlier application permitted. The
Group is considering the implications of the whole standard
including other phases of HKFRS 9 as well as the appropriate
timing of its adoption.

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2012
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m HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” replaces all of

the guidance on control and consolidation in HKAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”, and
HK(SIC)-12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”. HKAS
27 is renamed “Separate Financial Statements” and it
continues to be a standard dealing solely with separate
financial statements. The existing guidance for separate
financial statements is unchanged. The revised definition of
control under HKFRS 10 focuses on the need to have both
power and variable returns before control is considered to
be present. Power is the current ability to direct the activities
that significantly influence returns. Returns must vary and
can be positive, negative or both. The determination of
power is based on current facts and circumstances and is
continuously assessed. The standard is applicable to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early
adoption permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of
HKFRS 10 and intends to adopt HKFRS 10 upon its effective
date.

m HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” includes

the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other
entities, including joint arrangements, associates, special
purpose vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles. The
standard is applicable to annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013 with early adoption permitted. The
Group is assessing the impact of HKFRS 12 and intends to
adopt HKFRS 12 upon its effective date.

m HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurements” establishes a single

source of guidance under HKFRS for fair value
measurements and disclosure requirements for use across
HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 does not change when an entity is
required to use fair value, but rather provides guidance on
how to measure fair value under HKFRSs when fair value is
required or permitted. The standard is applicable to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 with early
adoption permitted. The Group is assessing the impact of
HKFRS 13 and intends to adopt HKFRS 13 upon its effective
date.

There are no other HKFRSS or interpretations that are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group.
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December 2012.

(@) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities
(“SPE")) over which the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not
owned by the Company. They are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, separately from equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated income statement as an allocation of the
net profit for the period between non-controlling interest and
equity holders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

~

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
without change of control as transactions with equity owners
of the Group. For purchases from the non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposal to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity are referred as jointly controlled entities.
Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ profits or
losses is recognised in the income statement, and its share of
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in
a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the jointly controlled entity is stated at cost less
provision for impairment allowances. The results of the jointly
controlled entity are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2.3.

2.4,

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment |0ss, interest
income is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss.

Non interest income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.22

(@) Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual
basis when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate are recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate in determining interest income on the loans.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Annual Report 2012



SRATT 2.5. Financial assets

REFAB SRR~ N LRAFEEAIT The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:

ARBHEBVAF - R RN WET - & financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and

ZEHNERRAIEHESRE = c £ receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale

FAMFBALRHENTE - BEET financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for

AT AR R ER R 9K o which the investments were acquired. Management determines

the classification of its investments at initial recognition.

(@) AAFETHIT ARZEN SRR (@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BEERIR] B A : FHIEREM SR This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
BrERTFERDEMNEE AN TFEE trading, and those designated as at fair value through profit or
HITAREN SRR - WEME~E loss at inception. A financial asset is classified as held for
ZRERANEEMBA - HIZR~ R trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
SEEEMAIRFERTAASG 2 —FF short term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
53 ] B UEHE & i B B SERR AZ HAER A - instruments that are managed together and for which there is
MK AFHEERZERE - BREFEEEXN evidence of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making.
FREIN - BENSTE T BEIRIAR N FHE Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they
AR - are designated as hedges.

RENTREZERET - —BSHA A financial asset is typically classified as fair value through

B 1% SR 9 BA Tr{ﬁxﬂc T AR ERZE profit or loss at inception if it meets the following criteria:

Al :

() B1ZARTE BRI E R > Bzt (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
EAEEITESHATRERAGTZ measurement or recognition inconsistency (sometimes
MESXBIAEZF KSR - fLIA referred to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
=BT 2 A IAE R (B R otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
RS ITH4ERR ) 5 3% financial liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases; or

(i) & ARYE A E B X BS B R IR R (i) a group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is
REE A—HERMRTR e managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
MERFRATFEEEEERITMHE basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
P MABRREZEERETERE or investment strategy, and this is the basis on which
ERERZASRAT R SEm information about the financial assets and/or financial
i fi o liabilities is provided internally to the key management

personnel.

(i) SHE—"MLZWMNALEEAEK (iii) Financial assets, such as debt securities held, containing
FMBBARITE T AR E G one or more embedded derivatives which significantly
FUEHFFEME 0] AR E AR modify the cash flows, can be designated at fair value
FEEAIT AR o through profit or loss.
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(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and for which the Group has no intention of
trading immediately or in the short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold
or reclassified held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an
isolated event that is beyond the Group’s control, is non-
recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by
the Group, such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness or (i) other than an insignificant amount of
held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would be
reclassified as available-for-sale.

(d) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial
investments that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Available-for-sale
investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or changes in interest rate, exchange rate or market
prices. They are initially recognised at fair value including direct
and incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently held
at fair value.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
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Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the income statement in the period in
which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (fair value reserve), until the financial
asset is derecognised or impaired at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in equity is reclassified to
income statement. However, interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the income
statement. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement when the entity’s right
to receive payment is established.

The fair value of quoted investments in active markets are
based on current bid prices. If there is no active market for a
financial asset, the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation technigues. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants.

The Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that would
meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the available-
for-sale categories if the Group has the intention and ability to hold
these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at
the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification
date. Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as
applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded
before reclassification date are subsequently made. Effective
interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the
reclassification date.
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2.6.

Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of assets is impaired includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about
the following loss events:

m significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

m a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments,

m the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a
concession that the Group would not otherwise consider;

m initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other financial
reorganisation,

m the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

m observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

—adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

—economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.
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The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant. For exposures which are not individually
significant, the Group will assess impairment either individually
or collectively. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows
that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and
selling the collateral, whether or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics which are relevant to the estimation of future
cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.
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Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group
and historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss
experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data
to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect
the period on which the historical loss experience is based and
to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that
do not exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups of assets
should reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in
related observable data from period to period which are
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the group
and their magnitude. The methodology and assumptions used
for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the
Group to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against the related
allowance for loan impairment at the discretion of the Credit
Committee. Such loans are written off after all the necessary
procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the allowance
for loan impairment in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the income statement.
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2.7.

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
investment or a group of available-for-sale investments is
impaired. For debt securities, the group uses the criteria
referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognised in income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of the instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can
be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in income statement, the
impairment loss to the extent of such change is reversed
through the income statement.

—
(¢
-~

Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms have
been renegotiated are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as renegotiated loans.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial
liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position include
(i) notes and Transferable Loan Certificates issued under the Debt
Issuance Programme (“DIP"), (i) notes offered to retail investors
through the placing banks in standalone retail bond issues and
under the Retail Bond Issuance Programme (“RBIP”) and (iii) notes
issued under the Medium Term Note Programme (“MTN"). The
mortgage-backed securities (“MBS”) issued by SPE through the
US$3 Billion Bauhinia Mortgage-backed Securitisation Programme
(“MBS Programme”) are recorded as mortgage-backed securities
issued in the statement of financial position on consolidation of
the SPEs. These notes (including MBS) are initially designated as
either (i) financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or (i)
other financial liabilities.
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2.8.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes in fair
value being recorded in the income statement. Those notes which
are designated as hedged items under a fair value hedge are
adjusted for the fair value changes subject to the risk being
hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the consideration
received, net of transaction costs incurred. The notes are
subsequently stated at amortised costs; any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period of the debt
securities using the effective interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains or
losses, being the difference between the redemption/repurchase
amount and the carrying amount, are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which the redemption/repurchase takes
place.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investments are
recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Group
purchases or sells the assets. Loans and receivables are
recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and debt
securities issued are recognised on the trade date. Other liabilities
are recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities are
de-recognised from the statement of financial position when and
only when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.
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2.9. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from
market prices in active markets, including recent market
transactions, and valuation technigues, including discounted cash
flow models and options pricing models, as appropriate. All
derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive and as
liabilities when fair value is negative. Interest receivables and
payables arising from derivatives are separately presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
Statement.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i) hedges of the fair
value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair
value hedge); or, (i) hedges of highly probable future cash flows
attributable to a recognised asset or liability, or a forecast
transaction (cash flow hedge). Hedge accounting is used for
derivatives designated in this way provided certain criteria are
met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction, the
relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of
hedged items.
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(a) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualified as fair value hedges are recorded in the income
statement, together with any changes in the fair value of the
hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used, is amortised to
income statement over the period to maturity.

(b) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the income
statement in the periods in which the hedged item will affect
income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is
immediately transferred to the income statement.

s
(¢
-~

Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic hedges that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are held at fair value
through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of any
derivative instrument are recognised immediately in the
income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.11.Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held for
sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant loans are
derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets are measured at
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision maker is the person or group that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the
operating segments of an entity. The Group has determined the
Chief Executive Officer as its chief operating decision maker.

Income directly associated with each segment is included in
determining segment performance. Funding costs are allocated to
each segment by way of internal fund transfer pricing
mechanisms. Cost allocation is based on the direct costs incurred
by the respective segment and apportionment of management
overheads.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
("the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
Statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong Kong
dollars (HK$'000), which is the Company’s functional and the
Company's and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated
with the closing rate as at the reporting date. Non-monetary
items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are translated with the exchange rate as at the date
of initial recognition, non-monetary items in a foreign currency
that are measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary assets
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-
sale, a distinction is made between translation differences
resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial instruments
held at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

m Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

m Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions);

m All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income;
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m Exchange differences arising from the above process are
reported in shareholders’ equity as translation reserve; and

m On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
disposed of, or partially disposed of, such exchange
differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

(d) Disposal of foreign operation

On disposal of foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the equity holders of the Company are taken to
the income statement.

2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives.

over the unexpired period of the lease
over the unexpired period of the lease

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures

Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years

EBRBISERAT —S——FF1K 129



AW %IREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2.15.

2.16.

130

RGN ERAERFHRTE 2R
RV H T &S o

HERRIZA/RMSKEENZT TR
A o

FHER R~ HE = SSEREAM
EERMBA~HIRENRE

SHATRERHAR  HEBEESXWILERED
R RS SRR R R B IURE - 1 F
IR B4R KRR SRR E zh AR
Mg BFRERNEAETEARRE
XFEECNONERKALR - KK
HETRA - WEBEREMEARRH
RZHISHAR B BURE - REBITHR AN
EpR-ikmE(BRRE) RS TTAKE -
RANE - IREER TIRA XA FEHNREE
KASERNEZRSE  WEZEFHT
W RFIANRERK - EEFN2RS
i E AR BEAKE - A S SR ER K
[B] o

THERBKEREERE  HE LI TS
R BRBLME R B RYRR F T RE N A, o
EF-EREEMEH  REBBHEAXF]
MELERE - E-MEARERRFN
W &5 RK P TR IKEE - B E A A
EEAMSRRARNAR~E(BERE) °

= A % 326 FE A I

HM BRI e E SRR ER I - HUK
SHERSERNBIN RIFECHREINTH
b= s H 1 B S B RN N FIA o
EXMBERT R b RS
HERAENEHIA

4 80 (9 B AR TR 2 45 B 5K 445 o SR 7 7
BRI -

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. It is included in the income statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries, jointly

controlled entity, and other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that its interests in jointly controlled
entity are impaired. Such objective evidence includes whether
there has been any significant adverse changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment in which the
jointly controlled entity operates or whether there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost. If there is
an indication that an interest in an associate or jointly controlled
entity is impaired, the Group assesses whether the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement for the
amount by which the carrying amount is lower than the higher of
the investment’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. Any
reversal of such impairment loss in subsequent periods is reversed
through income statement.

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is required
upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the subsidiary in the Company's statement of financial
position exceeds the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s net
assets including goodwill in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.16.Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Annual Report 2012



126 FE B T SR & HF AR AE AR R 1 ST PR AS AR
RFERIRBEMEHAREERNERLZ
MEREE - BREMBHEAACERE
RN FRBRESLSZAE WS RE 25 K@
BZENZTIEL KT - BLEHRIRA
& = R B R 5 2 2040 3¢ S5 BR 9040 5 TR A2
MR IE PTG 1R 7= 2 I 31k FE PR S A
FHMERZHERERE

E=
Dl

i 7T B B AR Sk ROR 4 M) 5 7 3 B =
FHE - MBS LEFRIDUA = - BEMRF
T8 BR A5 P I8 28 B i = A O B B A T 3R
& BAFEe ER AR E B AL EES
FHB AT REAE AT IR SR TS 2 3k B B E A
MRS ©

SAHERA RN SR FH A FES
FITERXNBENMEZELMEER
SR AGRRIT AR Memls - REER
BER S HEWERPEIA o

2.17. EREF

(a) BRAAZHEHREY

(b

=

BRAMZEERETITERAE X RE
BN - REERZ2MPRRE AR
RS54 1t =8 B F R MK B RS R
SR RIITHE -

RAANZHEORMR  ~REESR T
fE RARERET BN ©

WAL

RERRE—TRERIAZES THER
Fr3afAEa R - KEH
BIEAATARIELRETHE ST
B - AR R o

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax is provided on
temporary differences arising from investment in the subsidiary,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-
sale investments and cash flow hedges, which are charged or
credited directly to other comprehensive income, is also credited
or charged directly to other comprehensive income and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together with
the deferred gain or loss.

2.17.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the end of each
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or paternity
leave are recognised when the absence occurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice
that has created constructive obligations.
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(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
defined contribution scheme, the assets of which are generally
held in separate trustee — administered funds. These pension
plans are generally funded by payments from employees and
by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
scheme and defined contribution scheme are expensed as
incurred and are reduced by the portion of employer
contributions being forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to full vesting of the employer contributions.

(d) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Company recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating the
employment of current employees according to a detailed
formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or providing
termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of each reporting period date are
discounted to present value.

2.18. ¥ & 2.18.Provisions
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Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events where it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation.
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2.19.Leases

(@) Operating leases

~

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. The Group entered into operating leases
primarily as lessee. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in
which termination takes place.

Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. The
Group entered into finance leases primarily as lessor. Finance
leases are capitalised as receivables at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The difference between the gross receivable and
the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned
finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of
the lease using the net investment method, which reflects a
constant periodic rate of return. Hire purchase contracts
having the characteristics of a finance lease are accounted for
in the same manner as finance leases. Impairment allowances
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies
set out in Note 2.6.

2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’
maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances
with banks that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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2.21.Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets and the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liability
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.

The guarantees given to investors of mortgage-backed securities
issued by the Company for the timely repayment of guaranteed
MBS are recorded as financial guarantees under HKAS 39 in the
Company'’s statement of financial position.

Other financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance
contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out in
Note 2.22 (b).

2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@) Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme of the Group is accounted for on the
annual accounting basis. Under the annual accounting
approach, the Group makes provisions based on credible
estimates of future income and outgoings to determine the
underwriting result for the current accounting period. The
underwriting result includes any adjustments arising from the
correction of the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written through
Authorized Institutions (“Als”) as defined in accordance with
the Banking Ordinance during an accounting period. The gross
premiums after deduction of discounts, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the risk
premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group. The net
premiums are recognised as income on a time-apportioned
basis during the time the insurance coverage is effective.
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Unearned premiums represent that portion of net premiums
written which are estimated to relate to risks and services
subsequent to the end of each reporting period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims incurred
but not reported and loss reserve at the end of each reporting
period. For risk-sharing business, 50% or 75% of the net risk
premiums earned in a year depending on the respective
product is set aside as a Contingency Reserve for a period of
time in accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered appropriate by the directors. Withdrawals from the
Contingency Reserve can be made to meet excess claims at
any time during the period. At the end of the reporting period,
the unutilised balance of the Contingency Reserve can be
released to general reserve.

Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into by the
Group with reinsurers under which the Group is compensated
for losses on one or more insurance contracts issued by the
Group. Benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of claims recoverable from
reinsurers and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or due to
reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts
associated with the reinsured insurance contracts and in
accordance with the terms of each reinsurance contract.
Reinsurance assets are primarily premiums for reinsurance
contracts and are recognised as an expense.

Commissions are recognised in the income statement as
incurred.

(b) Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan facilities
provided to eligible small and medium-sized enterprises and
non-listed enterprises (SMES), in return for guarantee fee, and
insurance coverage on reverse mortgage provided to elderly
people, in return for insurance premium.
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The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are adequate
on each reporting date, using the current estimates of future
cash flows under these contracts. If the assessment shows
that the carrying amount of its guarantee and insurance
liabilities are inadequate in the light of the estimated future
cash flows, the shortfall shall be recognised in the income
Statement.

50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the insurance
premium earned in a year is set aside as a Contingency
Reserve for a period of time in accordance with relevant
regulatory guidelines and as considered by directors to be
appropriate. Withdrawals from the Contingency Reserve can
be made to meet excess claims at any time during the period.
At the end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of the
Contingency Reserve can be released to general reserve.

2.23.Dividend distribution

3.1.

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each reporting
period is disclosed as a separate component of shareholders’
equity and as a liability in the period in which the dividends are
approved by shareholders.

Financial risk management

Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios of
mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase of assets
through issuance of debt securities; and (iii) to provide mortgage
insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage loans originated by
such Als and secured on residential properties in Hong Kong; (iv)
to provide financial guarantee cover to Als in respect of loans
originated by such Als to SMEs in Hong Kong; (v) to provide
insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by such Als to elderly people; and (vi) to operate a
centralised microfinance platform to support microfinance loans.
By their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to the
use of financial instruments including cash, loans, debts and
derivatives.
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3.2.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and
those activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. The
Group manages the risks in a prudent manner in sustaining the
Group'’s financial performance.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at corporate
level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide risk matters
including financial and non-financial risks. The policies and limits
for various risks are monitored and reviewed regularly by various
management committees, including the Credit Committee, Asset
and Liability Committee (“ALCQ"), Transaction Approval Committee
(“TAC") and Operational Risk Committee (“ORC") which report to
Corporate Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and standards
for asset acquisition and mortgage insurance. The ALCO oversees
the implementation of market risk management and investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors. The TAC conducts
an in-depth analysis of pricing economics and associated credit
risks for business transactions, whilst taking into consideration the
latest market conditions and business strategies approved by the
Board. The ORC is responsible for ensuring that all business
entities and line functions maintain an effective operational risk
and internal control framework. The ORC is also responsible for
providing directions and resolving issues related to policies,
controls and management of operational issues referred to by line
functions, as well as ensuring prompt and appropriate corrective
action in response to audit findings related to operational risks or
internal controls. In addition, Internal Audit is responsible for the
independent review of risk management and the control
environment. The most important types of risks are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk which includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and equity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit risk
on liquid funds and investment securities is limited because the
credit ratings of the counterparties, mainly sovereigns, quasi-
sovereign agencies, banks and companies, should meet the
minimum requirement in accordance with the investment
guidelines approved by the Board of Directors.
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The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan portfolio,
which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Allowance for impairment is provided
for losses that have been incurred at the end of the reporting
period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property market
could result in losses that are different from those provided for at
the end of the reporting period. The Group therefore has a prudent
policy for managing its exposure to credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset and mortgage insurance
portfolios, the Group adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i)
select Approved Sellers with established criteria, (i) adopt prudent
asset purchasing criteria and insurance eligibility criteria, (iii)
conduct effective due diligence reviews and (iv) ensure adequate
protection for higher-risk assets or transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group are spread
over a large number of customers and counterparties. The
underlying collaterals on the Group’s mortgage exposures are
located in Hong Kong and Korea.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special attention
paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor these loans
and take recovery action such as establishing relief plan with
borrowers in order to maximise recoveries. Loan impairment
assessment is performed regularly and impairment allowance is
charged to income statement in accordance with the guidelines
approved by the Credit Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability of
specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation, which are
subject to regular review.

Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly consist
of properties and the deferred consideration (Note 27). For finance
lease receivable, the collateral types include taxi and public light
bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio and finance lease receivable are
generally fully secured by collateral. The current collateral value of
properties is determined with the use of public indices on a
portfolio basis.
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Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with banks
as the exposures are considered to be low risk due to the nature
of the counterparties and short term maturity. Investment
securities are generally unsecured, with the exception of asset-
backed securities which are secured by properties or other assets.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swap Dealers Association
master agreement with all counterparties for derivative
transactions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures are
monitored against counterparty risk limits established in
accordance with the investment guidelines and credit risk policy of
the Group. These counterparty risk limits are subject to regular
review by the Credit Committee on a semi-annual basis. At any
one time, the amount subject to counterparty risk is limited to the
current fair value of instruments favourable to the Group (i.e.
assets with positive fair value), which in relation to derivatives is
only a small fraction of the contract, or notional values used to
express the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits with
counterparties, together with potential exposures from market
movements.

Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and insurance
contracts

The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.
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Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in cash,
securities or equities is made in the expectation of a
corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily
settlement limits are established for each counterparty to cover
the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the Group’s market
transactions on any single day.

(8) RITFTHF B IR M H ST HE hnoR (a) Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking account of

BHENRSEINRIITOT collateral held or other credit enhancements are analysed as
follows:

AERANATSRATSSERNRS The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial assets of

HIKESHAEL - AFfERINRS the Group and the Company are equal to their carrying

ERRBE AT

amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of off-balance
sheet exposures are as follows:

AEH
The Group

b /N
The Company

31 December
2011

FET
HK$'000

31 December
2012

FTEx
HK$'000

31 December
2011

FAL
HK$'000

31 December
2012

FTET
HK$'000

UEEELS Financial guarantees
(AR AT X (contractual amount
HEHLH) under the MBS
programme) - = 214,742 367,252
B MR Total risk-in-force
— IR S — mortgage insurance
business 16,614,898 16,624,427 17,101,150 17,401,041
—HmiERRk — other guarantee and
IRBS b 25 insurance business 1,152,296 874,638 1,152,296 874,638
17,767,194 17,499,065 18,468,188 18,642,931
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IHRAENERREIFTAT (b) Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as follows:

B i LN
The Group The Company
F=2-—=-% T=F——% TF=%-—=-F T —F
t=RA=t-A +=ZA=t—-8 +=A=+-B t+t=A=1+-H

As at AS at As at AS at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011

FEx FHT FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R ARE Neither past due

nor impaired 25,518,011 32,706,938 21,607,824 27,605,741
BEBEREE Past due but not impaired 379,243 431,579 337,812 403,239
BERE Impaired 2,197 4,923 2,197 4,923
RIAA B Gross loan portfolio 25,899,451 33,143,440 21,947,833 28,013,903
RHRER R Allowance for
loan impairment (4,052) (7,622) (4,030) (7,478)
25,895,399 33,135,818 21,943,803 28,006,425
TFERBARRSHA TR R ENTHAE The credit quality of loans that were neither past due nor
HERRE  AI2EASEHIXNH NI impaired as at the end of the reporting period can be assessed
PR RS HATIEE - by reference to the internal rating system adopted by the
Group.

&R PN
The Group The Company
F=2-=% T=F——% TF=%B-=f T-FT %
t=A=t-A +=ZA=t—-8 +=A=+-B t+t=A=1+-H

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FHT THET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Rl - Grades:
1235 1103 25,500,399 32,693,002 21,595,505 27,591,895
4% 4 - = - -
5% 5 17,612 13,936 12,319 13,846

25,518,011 32,706,938 21,607,824 27,605,741
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12 3R B IE T 15 5T XU RS 5ol B 7 6 2R Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either no credit risk or no
KFIDFER TR - HEETEKENE recent past due history, and with different levels of credit
ARG - RAF B ENIBRIZIS enhancements in addition to the collateral held as security for
DI FR AR A N g 7 1 49 7 4 K 51 /9 HE 7R mortgage portfolio and finance lease receivable.
ﬁ:l'] °
AR BRI BRI 6 HA A D A DR Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history and with
HEEETEKTFHE I LHEINRIEE - different levels of credit enhancement in addition to the
REFEENBERZBIIRAS MR HE collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio and finance
) R IR SR HE R @ o lease receivable.
54 55 10 B A J8 Bl I8 A BT K Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history and with
HIEFBERNBRIZIBIERAE M RAE collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio and finance
N R YK SR A o lease receivable.

(c) BHIERBER TR (c) Loans past due but not impaired
AR AT 2K @EERREN T The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans that were
KB - past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period:

R KATF
The Group The Company

+=A=+—-B +=-A=+—H +=A=+—-H +=-A=1+—8

As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2011 2012 2011
FEx THAT FTET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
36 HAR A - Past due:

=ANAZUAT Three months or less 376,078 429,889 334,647 401,687

AMNASAT Six months or less but
BEBEI=1MA over three months 561 1,174 561 1,036
<A Over six months 2,604 516 2,604 516
ST Total 379,243 431,579 337,812 403,239

HA G REM  Of which fair value of
=i HENsRiEE  collateral and other
WAFE credit enhancement 2,531,140 2,357,591 2,429,776 2,269,314
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(d) Individually impaired loans

©

Individually impaired loans of the Group and the Company
before taking into account the cash flows from collateral held
and credit enhancement amounted to HK$2,197,000 (2011:
HK$4,923,000).

The fair value of related collateral held and credit enhancement
of the Group and the Company for individually impaired loans
amounted to HK$8,175,000 (2011: HK$13,985,000).

Repossessed collateral

The Group and the Company obtained assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security.

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with
the proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness.
Repossessed property is classified in the statement of financial
position within other assets.

Cash and short-term funds

According to the investment guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors, the Group can only place deposits with note-
issuing banks or banks with a certain minimum credit rating.
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the minimum acceptable
short-term credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor’s), P-2
(Moody’s) and F-2 (Fitch).

Investment securities

According to the investment guidelines approved by the Board
of Directors, the Group can only invest in debt securities with a
certain minimum credit rating. The proportion of investments
according to rating categories is monitored and reviewed by
ALCO.
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The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by
rating designation as at the end of the reporting period, based
on external credit agency’s ratings (Standard and Poor’s,
Moody's and Fitch). In the absence of issue-specific ratings,

& o the ratings for the issuers are reported.

BEZ

A HEITE 3 EpchnE
AEARARAR Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity BH
F-F--%+-A=t—-H securities securities Total
The Group and the Company THER TER TET
As at 31 December 2012 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/Ada AAA/Aaa 952,959 2,396,837 3,349,796
AA- 2 AA+/Aa3 £ Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 10 Aal 1,256,388 5,280,188 6,536,576
A-ZEA+/A3E AT A-t0 A+/A3t0 A1 284,983 1,560,783 1,845,766
BA 2,494,330 9,237,808 11,732,138

HEZE

AT B b nE
A& RARE] Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity BA
F-E2—%+ZRA=1—H securities securities Total
The Group and the Company TAET FAT THBT
As at 31 December 2011 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/A3a AAA/Aaa - 2,403,398 2,403,398
AA- £ AA+/Aa3 £ Aal AA- to AA+/Aa3 10 Aal 294,299 5,082,178 5,376,477
A-ZEA+/AZE AT A- 10 A+/A3 10 A1 = 783,572 783,572
BA Total 294,299 8,269,148 8,563,447
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that
the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise
from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products,
all of which are exposed to general and specific market
movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates or
prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange
rates and equity prices. The Group’s exposures to market risk
primarily arise from the interest rate management of the entity’s
financial instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from
the net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its existing
interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance using fair value
hedges in the form of interest rate swaps by swapping into
floating-rate funding to better match the floating-rate assets. The
Group also hedges the net exposure of the foreign-currency
denominated debts issued and the overseas residential mortgage
loans by the use of cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and
economic hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken by the
Treasury Department using risk limits approved by the Board of
Directors. Strategies on interest rate risk management, financing,
hedging, investments are formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings
are held to review the latest conditions in the financial markets
and the asset-liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is
responsible for monitoring financial market movements and
executing transactions in the cash, derivatives and debt markets in
accordance with the strategies laid down by ALCO. The middle
office monitors the compliance of risk limits and performs stress
tests to assess the potential size of losses that could arise in
extreme conditions. The results of the stress tests are reviewed by
ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to monitor
the sensitivity of projected net interest income under different
interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the negative impact through
hedging operations. A 20 basis points parallel downward shift of
the interest rate curve as at 31 December 2012 would increase the
future net interest income for the next 12 months by around HK$1
million (2011: decrease by around HK$4 million) and decrease by
around HK$1 million (2011: increase by around HK$4 million) for a
similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2012, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards, profit for
the year would have been higher by less than HK$1 million (2011:
lower by less than HK$1 million) and the fair value reserve would
have been higher by less than HK$1 million (2011: HK$1 million) as
at 31 December 2012. If interest rates had experienced a 20 basis
points parallel shift upwards, profit for the year would have been
lower by less than HK$1 million (2011: higher by less than HK$2
million) and the fair value reserve would have been lower by less
than HK$1 million (2011: HK$1 million).

As at 31 December 2012, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
the US dollar, profit for the year would have been around HK$11
million higher (2011: HK$8 million). Conversely, if the HK dollar had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US dollar,
profit for the year would have been around HK$11 million lower
(2011: HK$8 million).
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As at 31 December 2012, with all other variables held constant, if
the HK dollar had weakened by 100 price interest points against
foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit for the year would
have been around HK$18 million higher (2011: HK$8 million).
Conversely, if the HK dollar had strengthened by 100 price interest
points against foreign currencies other than US dollar, profit for the
year would have been around HK$18 million lower (2011: HK$8
million).

As at 31 December 2012, with all other variables held constant, if
the price of exchange-traded funds and real estate investment
trust had decreased by 1%, the fair value reserve would have been
around HK$33 million lower (2011: HK$20 million). Conversely, if
the price of exchange-traded funds and real estate investment
trust had increased by 1%, the fair value reserve would have been
around HK$33 million higher (2011: HK$20 million).

The increase or decrease represents management's assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rate, exchange rates
and market price for a 12-month period.
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KER
The Group

(@) Currency risk

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on its financial
position and cash flows. The Board sets allowable currencies
for investment purposes. The ALCO sets limits on the currency
exposure that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk. Included in the tables are the
Group's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised

by currency.

HK$'000

e
usb
TRT
HK$'000

Hfshh
Other foreign
currencies
THL
HK$'000

/%\ﬁ
Total
TET
HK$'000

F-E--& As at 31 December 2012

+=ZA=1+—-H
R Assets
NebkEinse Cash and short-term funds 8,424,927 746,380 544,237 9,715,544
RUR 2 R ICFR Interest and remittance

receivables 278,110 157,079 34,401 469,590

TESBTA Derivative financial instruments 1,303,778 139,235 - 1,443,013
RHAR BT Loan portfolio, net 21,540,141 4,355,258 - 25,895,399
EHRR Investment securities:

—AEE — available-for-sale 1,691,810 3,688,414 432,603 5,812,827

—RFEZIEH — held-to-maturity 3,410,103 4,588,260 1,239,445 9,237,808
M - e R Prepayments, deposits and

Hi 5= other assets 39,601 - 40 39,641
B Fixed assets 29,116 - 12 29,128
BRER Reinsurance assets 222,007 - - 222,007
REEE Total assets 36,939,593 13,674,626 2,250,738 52,864,957
A fR Liabilities
RS Interest payable 128,050 82,926 24,780 235,756
AT - AT Accounts payable, accrued

REMS expenses and other liabilities 4,463,882 716 518 4,465,116
fTESHMIA Derivative financial instruments 174,082 1,013 - 175,095
ZERH A fi Current income tax liabilities 101,464 - 123 101,587
B RET I 57 Deferred income tax liabilities 109,404 - - 109,404
RIS AR Insurance liabilities 1,545,863 - - 1,545,863
BR1RZBILH Debt securities issued 17,731,198 10,727,312 7,946,117 36,404,627
B RITRIBIE A Mortgage-backed

securities issued 214,672 - - 214,672

AfREE Total liabilities 24,468,615 10,811,967 7,971,538 43,252,120
Bogd Net position 12,470,978 2,862,659 (5,720,800) 9,612,837
AEfERINEE N Off-balance sheet net

Eot notional position* (13,519,119) 5,559,632 7,930,584 (28,903)

PORFARERINGR IFCEINTITESRT #  Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
B (EZHURIKASE T MK XR) the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,

B NETEE AT EHNEDR which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency

movements and their fair values.
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B
HKD
TRR
HK$'000

Hitryh
Other foreign

currencies
TER
HK$'000

B#
Total
TER
HK$'000

F-g--f As at 31 December 2012

+=R=+-H
B Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 8,421,586 746,380 420,377 9,588,343
R 8 JoC 3R Interest and remittance

receivables 269,647 157,079 33,689 460,415

TESRMTE Derivative financial instruments 1,303,778 139,235 - 1,443,013
WIER AT Loan portfolio, net 17,588,545 4,355,258 - 21,943,803
EHRR - Investment securities:

—A#HEE — available-for-sale 1,691,810 3,688,414 432,603 5,812,827

—RFEZIEH — held-to-maturity 3,410,103 4,588,260 1,239,445 9,237,808
YNGR Interests in subsidiaries 3,841,609 - 102,060 3,943,669
MEFI - Ze & Prepayments, deposits and

Hi s = other assets 46,520 - - 46,520
il Fixed assets 29,116 - - 29,116
ARk 7 = Reinsurance assets 222,372 - - 222,372
R BE Total assets 36,825,086 13,674,626 2,228,174 52,727,886
Atk Liabilities
NENENS Interest payable 127,980 82,926 24,780 235,686
RAkE - RiffFF Accounts payable, accrued

RE 6 bk expenses and other liabilities 4,686,763 716 250 4,687,729
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments 174,082 1,013 - 175,095
SEBIAA B Current income tax liabilities 100,563 - - 100,563
12 R f5% Deferred income tax liabilities 109,103 - - 109,103
REHFR Insurance liabilities 1,548,076 - - 1,548,076
BATRSIER Debt securities issued 17,731,198 10,727,312 7,946,117 36,404,627
Ml BE Total liabilities 24,477,765 10,811,967 7,971,147 43,260,879
byl Net position 12,347,321 2,862,659 (5,742,973) 9,467,007
AREffRzRINEL Y Off-balance sheet net

ot notional position* (13,519,119) 5,559,632 7,930,584 (28,903)

FORFARRINEGR LR CEINTITESRT #  Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between

B (EZRANREAAR TR M)
AN ETISENFENEDR

the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Company’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.
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AT e
HKD usD
TAT TATL
HK$'000 HK$'000

Hsh
Other foreign
currencies
THL
HK$'000

Total
THEL
HK$'000

F=%——F As at 31 December 2011
+=-A=t+-8
R Assets
NekEHRE Cash and short-term funds 9,622,880 353,189 269,09 10,245,165
R 8 JoC 5k Interest and remittance
receivables 416,287 167,110 7,601 590,998
THESBIA Derivative financial instruments 1,345,990 213,197 - 1,559,187
RHAR BT Loan portfolio, net 25,997,927 7,137,891 - 33,135,818
I Investment securities:
—AfEHE — available-for-sale 648,884 1,654,819 = 2,303,703
—BAEZHH — held-to-maturity 3,450,593 4,231,068 587,487 8,269,148
HRRBIER R Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - 130,045 130,045
SUNE R Prepayments, deposits and
Hin &= other assets 27,057 - 40 27,097
EE R~ Fixed assets 30,949 = 325 31,274
BREA= Reinsurance assets 208,911 - - 208,911
REEE Total assets 41,749,478 13,757,274 994,594 56,501,346
il Liabilities
MAFE Interest payable 136,126 95,541 5,577 237,244
Rt - MAFFZ  Accounts payable, accrued
REA A R expenses and other liabilities 4,271,207 1,958 1,718 4,274,883
fTHESBTA Derivative financial instruments 131,005 8,577 - 139,582
L HBU 5 Current income tax liabilities 134,785 - - 134,785
15 RIS {57 Deferred income tax liabilities 52,672 - - 52,672
RBS 2 Insurance liabilities 1,630,595 - - 1,630,595
BRITRSIER Debt securities issued 23,152,749 15,212,992 2,731,466 41,097,207
BRITRIBII A Mortgage-backed securities
issued 367,137 - - 367,137
A EE Total liabilities 29.876,276 15,319,068 2,738,761 47,934,105
Foad Net position 11,873,202 (1,561,794) (1,744,167 8,567,241
RERGERINEB L Off-balance sheet net
Bot notional position* (10,441,252) 7,844,974 2,694,529 98,251
tORFARKRINEGR N CEINTITESRT # Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between

A (EZARRARER T HMIK I XR)
AN ETISENTENED

the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.
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Hfp o
Other foreign BA

BT eI

HKD usb currencies Total

VYN THL AL THL THL
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T=%——F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=t+-8
R Assets
NekBHRE Cash and short-term funds 9,620,528 353,189 148,130 10,121,847
R 8 JoC 5k Interest and remittance
receivables 403,959 167,110 7,001 578,070
THESBIA Derivative financial instruments 1,345,990 213,197 - 1,559,187
THAAR A Loan portfolio, net 20,868,534 7,137,891 = 28,006,425
EHRR - Investment securities:
—AHRHE — available-for-sale 648,384 1,654,819 = 2,303,703
—BAEZHH — held-to-maturity 3,450,593 4,231,068 587,487 8,269,148
BifE 2 B A Interests in subsidiaries 4,884,648 - 102,060 4,986,708
HEZHER S Investment in a jointly
controlled entity - - 120,554 120,554
MEFI - Be Kk Prepayments, deposits and
HiR7= other assets 188,787 = = 188,787
B Fixed assets 30,949 - - 30,949
BREE Reinsurance assets 208,911 - - 208,911
I | Total assets 41,651,783 13,757,274 965,232 56,374,289
A Liabilities
Innills Interest payable 136,010 95,541 5,577 237,128
RIRTIEER - RIS FFSZ Accounts payable, accrued
REA A R expenses and other liabilities 4,630,568 1,958 1,478 4,634,004
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 131,005 8,577 - 139,582
X ERR I fix Current income tax liabilities 135,131 = = 135,131
BREBTRE Deferred income tax liabilities 52,696 - = 52,696
RERE Insurance liabilities 1,630,595 - = 1,630,595
B RIS Debt securities issued 23,152,749 15,212,992 2,731,466 41,097,207
AREH Total liabilities 29,868,754 15,319,068 2,738,521 47,926,343
FOAM Net position 11,783,029 (1,561,794) (1,773,289) 8,447,946
AEffmRNEE Y Off-balance sheet net
BEot notional position* (10,441,252) 7,844,974 2,694,529 98,251

REnfmRINEG LG RINDITESRT
A (ZERARRAR R THTIRBE )
MBI SEAFENEZH

#

Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the difference between
the notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Company’s exposure to currency
movements and their fair values.
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(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on exposure
to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks. Interest
margins may increase as a result of such changes but may
reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected
movements arise. The ALCO sets limits on the level of interest
rate mismatch that may be undertaken, which is monitored
regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risks. Included in the tables are the Group’s assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing or maturity dates. The carrying amounts
of derivative financial instruments, which are principally used
to reduce the Group's exposure to interest rate movements,
are included under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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—-MAR

Upto
1 month
TR
HK$'000

—MARE
E=1A
Over

1 month to
3 months
TiEn
HK$'000

=EMNANE
E-F
Over 3
months to
1 year
THET
HK$'000

—FLE
ZhE
over

1 year to
5 years
THT
HK$'000

BENE
over

5 years
THER
HK$'000

it
Non-
interest
bearing
TER
HK$'000

E@
Total
TiEx
HK$'000

F-F-——-F As at 31 December 2012
+=A=+-H
B’ Assets
NeRkEHRE Cash and short-term funds 1,011,878 3,528,751 4,989,854 - - 185,061 9,715,544
VLGNSl Interest and remittance
receivables - - - - - 469,590 469,590
fTEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,443,013 1,443,013
WRER AH Loan portfolio, net 24,657,088 1,169,067 36,512 23,996 8,736 - 25,895,399
EHRA Investment securities:
— e — available-for-sale 868,060 973,117 653,153 - - 3,318,497 5,812,827
—RHBEHH — held-to-maturity 124,520 38,739 1,552,207 3,759,570 3,762,772 - 9,237,808
BUTFIm - e R Prepayments, deposits and
Hity 5 7= other assets - - - - - 39,641 39,641
EE R~ Fixed assets - - - - - 29,128 29,128
BRI R Reinsurance assets - - - - - 222,007 222,007
REBE Total assets 26,661,546 5,709,674 7,231,726 3,783,566 3,771,508 5,706,937 52,864,957
il Liabilities
RIS Interest payable - - - - - 235,756 235,756
MAIKE - MfSFFE Accounts payable, accrued
REMS R expenses and other liabilities 4,200,129 - - - - 264,987 4,465,116
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 175,095 175,095
L ERI £ fix Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 101,587 101,587
BREFIMS R Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 109,404 109,404
RIS Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1545863 1,545,863
BRITRSIES Debt securities issued 5,973,185 12,124,522 2,136,033 12,157,118 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
B RTIRBIEF Mortgage-backed securities
issued 214,672 - - - - - 214,672
AfREH Total liabilities 10,387,986 12,124,522 2,136,033 12,157,118 4,013,769 2,432,692 43,252,120
FISGURERO B4+ Total interest
sensitivity gap* 16,273,560  (6,414,848) 5,095,693 (8,373,552)  (242,261)
FIEFTETA Interest rate derivatives
(Fo3ama L (notional amounts of
£5) net position) (8,064,538) (8,973,851) 2,119,000 11,610,162 3,280,324
* RITATES M TASTEEWNE X{THESIE * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt

FHRIFM © securities issued.
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—MNAKLE =ABMLE —FH0E

E=/8 - ERE I8
-MNAA over over 3 Over HFHNE Non-
Upto 1monthto monthsto  1yearto Over interest BE
1month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
b NG| TR TR THET TR TR THx T
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-B-——F As at 31 December 2012
+=A=+-H
B’ Assets
NeREHERE Cash and short-term funds 899,615 3,515,067 4,989,854 - - 183,807 9,588,343
RideR 2 RoC 5k Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 460,415 460,415
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,443,013 1,443,013
WRAR B Loan portfolio, net 20,713,162 1,169,067 35,680 18,871 7,023 - 21,943,803
R - Investment securities:
—AftHE — available-for-sale 868,060 973,117 653,153 - - 3,318,497 5,812,827
—HEEEH — held-to-maturity 124,520 38,739 1,552,207 3,759,570 3,762,772 - 9,237,808
HERRRA Interests in subsidiaries 3,838,132 - 810 - 1,667 103,060 3,943,669
BNHR - e Prepayments, deposits and
REMBRF= other assets 7,984 - - - - 38,536 46,520
EE R~ Fixed assets - - - - - 29,116 29,116
BRI R~ Reinsurance assets - - - - - 222372 222,372
RERE Total assets 26,451,473 5,695,990 7,231,704 3,778,441 3,771,462 5,798,816 52,727,886
il Liabilities
RIS Interest payable - - - - - 235686 235,686
R ~ A Accounts payable, accrued
¥ REM SR expenses and other liabilities 4,410,603 - - - - 277,126 4,687,729
fTESMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 175,095 175,095
= HRR I fit Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 100,563 100,563
BREFIMS R Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 109,103 109,103
RIS Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,548,076 1,548,076
BRITRSIES Debt securities issued 5,973,185 12,124,522 2,136,033 12,157,118 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
AREEHR Total liabilities 10,383,788 12,124,522 2,136,033 12,157,118 4,013,769 2,445,649 43,260,879
FEgRRERD Total interest sensitivity gap*
B+ 16,067,685 (6,428,532) 5,095,671 (8,378,677)  (242,307)
FIRFTETA Interest rate derivatives
(Bo3ana L (notional amounts of net
&5 position) (8,064,538) (8,973,851) 2,119,000 11,610,162 3,280,324
* RUATESMIASZEENE KITHRFIE * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
FRIF © securities issued.
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—AR
Upto

1 month
FEL
HK$'000
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1 month to
3months
THL
HK$'000

4

months to

HK$'000

ARE  —FME
ZARF
Over
1year to
5 years
FAT
HK$'000

Over 3 AEME
Over

5 years
THL
HK$'000

1year
FHT

e
Non-
interest
bearing
FET
HK$'000

Total
THT
HK$'000

T-2—*% As at 31 December 2011

+=-A=1+-8
A= Assets
NerRERE Cash and short-term funds 8,487,923 1,715,112 - - - 42130 10,245,165
INL GVl Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 590,998 590,998
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1559187 1,559,187
AR B Loan portfolio, net 30,645,025 2,388,984 63,331 24,971 13,507 - 33135818
EFRAR Investment securities:

—AftHE — available-for-sale - 294,299 - - - 2,009,404 2,303,703

—HEE5H — held-to-maturity = 144,342 772,017 3,879,018 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
HRFEHISE AR R Investment in a jointly controlled

entity - - - - - 130,045 130,045

MEFI - ZE R Prepayments, deposits and

Hh 53 7= other assets - - - - - 27,097 27,097
Bl Fixed assets - - - - - 31,274 31,274
BRI R~ Reinsurance assets - - - - - 208,911 208,911
REBE Total assets 39,132,948 4,542,737 835,348 3,903,989 3,487,278 4,599,046 56,501,346
il Liabilities
InEppilE) Interest payable - - - - - 237,244 237,244
MK - NS Accounts payable, accrued

R E A5 f57 expenses and other liabilities 4,182,266 - - - - 92617 4,274,883
TEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 139,582 139,582
LIS Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 134,785 134,785
BRFMA R Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 52,672 52,672
RBS 7 R Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BRITRSIEH Debt securities issued 10,803,727 4,203,815 7289711 13,867,908 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
B RTIRIBIE# Mortgage-backed securities issued 367,137 - - - - - 367,137
AfREH Total liabilities 15,353,130 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 2,287,495 47,934,105
FIEGRERO B4 Total interest sensitivity gap* 23,779,818 338922 (6,454363)  (9.963919)  (1444,768)
FIRFTHETA Interest rate derivatives (notional

(HB085H0% L E%)  amounts of net position) (12,242,308)  (12,365,112) 7,256,541 13,326,420 4,122,710

* RITAMTESRIASEBNE AfTHRFIE * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt

FFEURIA ©

securities issued.
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—MARLE =MARE —FUE

==/\A 3 ERE T8
—MARW Over Over3 over  AFMLE Non-
Upto 1monthto  monthsto 1 year to Over interest per il
1 month 3 months 1 year 5years 5years bearing Total
VYN TET THT FTET FTHT THT FTHT THT
The Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T 2—% As at 31 December 2011
+-A=1+-H
Ri= Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 8,404,644 1,675,625 - - - 41578 10,121,847
LGNSl Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 578,070 578,070
TESHTA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1559187 1,559,187
WRAR B Loan portfolio, net 25,520,147 2,388,984 63,331 24,102 9,861 - 28,006,425
R - Investment securities:
—AftHE — available-for-sale - 294,299 - - - 2,009,404 2,303,703
—HEEIH — held-to-maturity = 144,342 772,017 3,879,018 3,473,771 - 8,269,148
REARRR Interests in subsidiaries 4,879,202 - - 856 3,590 103,060 4,986,708
EREHIERR Investment in a jointly controlled
entity - - - - - 120,554 120,554
MTFIM - B2E K Prepayments, deposits and
Hith 5 7= other assets 187,313 - - - - 1,474 188,787
B R = Fixed assets - - - - - 30,949 30,949
BRER Reinsurance assets - - - - - 208,911 208,911
REEE Total assets 38,991,306 4,503,250 835,348 3,903,976 3,487,222 4,653,187 56,374,289
A Liabilities
MF & Interest payable - - - - - 237,128 237,128
MK - MR Accounts payable, accrued
KA M5 R expenses and other liabilities 4,541,195 - - = = 92,809 4,634,004
TEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 139,582 139,582
X ERR I 1 fit Current income tax liabilities - - - - - 135,131 135,131
% RIS Deferred income tax liabilities - - - - - 52,696 52,69
{REQ A fit Insurance liabilities - - - - - 1,630,595 1,630,595
BATRSIES Debt securities issued 10,803,727 4,203,815 7289711 13,867,908 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
AfrEH Total liabilities 15,344,922 4,203,815 7,289,711 13,867,908 4,932,046 2,287941 47,926,343
FIEGRERO B+ Total interest sensitivity gap* 23,646,384 299435  (6,454,363)  (9,963932)  (1,444,824)
FIRFTET A Interest rate derivatives (notional
(#0854 L &%)  amounts of net position) (12,242,308)  (12,365,112) 7256541 13,326,420 4,122,710
* ORITASTESRMIASERNE AfTHRFIE * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments on the debt
FHRIF © securities issued.
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3.4. R EAE X 3.4. Liquidity risk

MR NG ANEHF R AEE 1A E S R Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being able to
sk R AE 9 B AR IR TR R M repay its payment obligations or to fund committed purchases of
N - NREAFHENESRARRL loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring the actual inflows
FERA T A S HEAPR &9 AL _E it 2 and outflows of funds on a daily basis and projecting longer-term
REMARTHL o REFANTR R € KR inflows and outflows of funds across a full maturity spectrum. The
SXFFAE SR RERFHENAGAES - Group has established diversified funding sources to support the
BREMRERZASERN R EERIR growth of its business and the maintenance of a balanced portfolio
HITEHS © of liabilities. Sources of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.
(@) RIFANERESD (@) Undiscounted cash flows analysis
TRINFAERE T 2 IRBAREFIRE L The tables below present cash flows payable by the Group
FHRFEFITESRAG - UPTEE under non-derivative financial liabilities, derivative financial
SEOITESRAGRIABMEEL liabilities that will be settled on a net basis and derivative
HITESRMITANINSRE - RAEKE financial instruments that will be settled on gross basis by
NEFMATNEARFTANERE - B remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the reporting
FEREH TN NR B ITESR period. The amounts disclosed in the table are the projected
RABZATHIN - REFWITETEE contractual undiscounted cash flows including future interest
IR R A E R F e LA R4z B payments on the basis of their earliest possible contractual
PEEEEN ML - maturity. The Group's derivatives include interest rate swaps

that will be settled on net basis; and cross currency swaps that
will be settled on gross basis.

(i) IEPTEIN SR (i) Non-derivative cash outflows
—MAURE EAMNABE —FHE

2=1A E-F Ef

-NAA Over Over Over RELNE

Upto 1monthto 3 months  1yearto Over B

1month 3 months  to 1year 5 years 5 years Total

KREH TR TR TR Ti#x TR TET
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F=-E-—F+=-HF=1+—H Asat 31 December 2012

Mk Liabilities
BR{TESIE 4 Debt securities issted (684,799) (3,590,319) (11,609,866) (18,389,744) (3,749,700) (38,024,428)
B RITRBIE A Mortgage-backed securities

issued (4,284)  (210,656) - - - (214,940)

(689,083) (3,800,975) (11,609,866) (18,389,744) (3,749,700) (38,239,368)
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VNG|
The Company

F=z-=f
+=A=+-H
fiffk

B ARSI

AR

Up to
1 month
TR
HK$'000

As at 31 December 2012

Liabilities

Debt securities issued (684,799)

—MAMRE
E=1H
Over

1 month to
3 months
TR
HK$'000

(3,590,319) (11,609,866) (18,389,744)

=AMAULE
2-F
over

3 months
to 1 year
TR
HK$'000

—E)t
Z1F
over

1 year to
5 years
TEx
HK$'000

HELNE
over

5 years
TER
HK$'000

BH
Total
TR
HK$'000

(3,749,700) (38,024,428)

— AR
Upto
1 month

—MANRE
Z=1R
Over

1 month to
3months

=AMAME
2—F
Qver

3 months
to 1 year

—FNE
ZhE
Over
1yearto
5years

AFELE
Over
5 years

&R THT THT THT FHEL FHT THT
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=2——F% As at 31 December 2011
+-A=1+-H

At Liabilities
BAIIRSIES Debt securities issued (3,693,567)  (1,027,594) (12,272,848) (21,350,131)  (4,789,991) (43,134,131
B RATIRIBIES Mortgage-backed securities

issued (8,373) (15,481) (130,367) (215,381) - (369,602)

(3,701,940)  (1,043,075) (12,403215) (21,565,512)  (4,789,991) (43,503,733

AR
The Company

F_E—F
+-A=t+-H
i

N

ERITHRSILS

—MNAR
Upto

1 month
T
HK$'000

As at 31 December 2011

Liabilities

Debt securities issued (3,693,567)

—MNARE
Z=1H
Over

1 month to
3months
T
HK$'000

(1,027,594)

=MARE

Qver

3 months
to 1year
THET
HK$'000

(12,272,848)

—ENE
ZRF
Over
1yearto
5years
TiBR
HK$'000

BENE
Over
5years
TR
HK$'000

(21,350,131)  (4,789,991)

Total
THL
HK$'000

(43,134,131)
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(i) TEIAERAGRE) (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)

—MARE =AMAME —FHRE

Z=/\R E-f ZIF
—MNAW Over Over over HENE
Upto 1monthto 3months  1yearto Over BE
1month  3months  to 1year 5 years 5 years Total
AEFAREAF THET TR TR T#x THEx TET
The Group and the Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 LEY0] HK$'000 HK$'000
FT-%2-=% As at 31 December 2012
tZA=+-H
BTIEEEER Derivative financial instrument
TESBIA : settled:
— AMEE — 0N net basis 27,539 89,976 242,823 890,511 222,328 1,473,177
— BHEE — 0n gross basis
ofispek:it Total outflow (1,341,924) (2,539,994) (7,471,516) (9,979,682) - (21,333,116)
MABH Total inflow 1,351,759 2,585,725 7,567,155 10,312,326 - 21,816,965

37,374 135,707 338,462 1,223,155 222,328 1,957,026

—MARE =MARE —FHE

E=4R : 2RF
—1MAR Over Over Over  AFMLE
Upto  1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over B
1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
REFARANT THT THAT THT T THT T
The Group and the Company HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F=5——*F As at 31 December 2011
T=RA=+-A
BN EEEER Derivative financial instrument
PTHESRIA : settled:
— AR — on net basis (1,041) (3,041) 2,095 (30,531) (100) (32,618)
— BHEE — 0n gross basis
ifispek:it Total outflow (821,675)  (1,726,619)  (4,320,424)  (3,255,500) - (10,124,218)
MABH Total inflow 815,632 1,730,655 4,310,093 3,239,425 - 10,095,805
(7,084) 995 (8,236) (46,606) (100) (61,031)
(i) & = fERFRINRE (iii) Off-balance sheet items
F_E2——F+-_A=+—H' ' K Financial guarantees of the Company as at 31 December
NEl—FRNEHHMSHERLE 2012 amounting to HK$214,742,000 (2011: HK$152,510,000)
214,742,000% 7m( = & — — F: matures no later than one year.

152,510,000 7T) °
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(b) A 547
TREFEZMARE
Ry K2 F = R

BLORH AR
R AT o

(b) Maturity analysis

The table below analyses the Group's assets and liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity
date.

—MAE ZARRE -FHRE

g E=/A B-F ZHE
Repayable —1AA Over Over Over HEHNE
on Upto 1monthto 3months  1yearto Over pllid B

demand  1month 3months to1year  5years  5Syears  Undated Total
KEH TR TET TER TR TR TR TER TR
The Group HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
F-E--F+-H=+-H Asat31December 2012
= Assets
NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 185,886 1,011,053 3,528,751 4,989,854 - - - 9,715,544
RHEA Loan portfolio 7530 560,714 400,245 2,365,120 11,967,442 10,595,458 2,942 25,899,451
EARA Investment securities
—AfLE — available-for-sale: - 868,060 678912 947,358 - - 3318497 5,812,827
—HAZIH — held-to-maturity - 124520 - 1575497 3775019 3,762,772 - 9,237,808
BRIAS Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 222007 222,007

193,416 2,564,347 4,607,908 9,877,829 15,742,461 14,358,230 3,543,446 50,887,637
Atk Liabilities
RIS R Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1545863 1,545,863
ERTREIEH Debt securities issued - 642,467 3423461 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 - 36,404,627
BRITIRIBTS Mortgage-backed securities issued - 4198 210,474 - - - - 214,672

- 646,665 3,633,935 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 1,545,863 38,165,162

ML ZARRE -FHE

kg E=/H B-f ZHE
Repayable —1AA Over Over Over E&EHE
on Upto 1monthto 3months  1yearto Over FRE k)

demand 1month 3months  to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
YN Tix THT TER TiEx THx TER TEr Tix
The Company HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
F-E--5+-B=1-R Asat31December 2012
" Assets
NeREHRS Cash and short-term funds 180,602 902,820 3,515,067 4,989,854 - - - 9,588,343
FaBA Loan portfolio 7,038 546,386 370,268 2,229,903 11,224,860 7,566,496 2,882 21,947,833
ES Investment securities
—mitihe — available-for-sale - 868,060 678912 947,358 - - 3,318,497 5812827
—REEHH — held-to-maturity - 12452 - 1575497 3775019 3,762,772 - 9,237,808
BRER” Reinsurance assets - - - - - - W3 222372

187,640 2,441,786 4,564,247 9,742,612 14,999,879 11,329,268 3,543,751 46,809,183
fifk Liabilities
Eft RifT 55 Other payable - 12318 198,156 - - - - 210474
I Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,548,076 1,548,076
BRITRSIEH Debt securities issued - 642,467 3,423,461 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 - 36,404,627

- 654785 3,621,617 11,109,164 17,215,766 4,013,769 1,548,076 38,163,177
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gl
Repayable ~ —AW BENE

on Upto Tmonthto  3months  1yearto QOver poid B

demand Imonth  3months  to1year 5 years 5years Undated Total

7 ST THT Thx BT TAT THL Tin Tin
The Group HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

:

F-E2——F+-R=+—H Asat31December 2011

R Assets
NeRESRE Cash and short-term funds 43499 8486554 1,715,112 - - - - 10,245,165
KRS Loan portfolio 5775 570,055 590,720 2895741 15274291 13,801,375 5483 33143440
AR R Investment securities
— e — available-for-sale - - - - 294,299 - 2009404 2303703
—REEIH — held-to-maturity - - 93,235 772016 3930126 3473771 - 8269148
BRRA Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 208911 208911
49274 9056609 2399067 3,667,757 19498716 17275146 2223798 54,170,367
il Liabilities
RS Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 163059 1630595
BRITRSIE R Debt securities issued - 3636717 890,024 11268017 20,370,403 4,932,046 - 41,097,207
BRITIRIBIE 5 Mortgage-backed securities issued - 8,207 14,805 129453 214,672 - - 367,137

- 364492 904829 11397470 20585075 4,932,046 1630595 43,094,939

» —FHE
g % ' 21f
Repayable ~ —MAM Over Over  REME

on Upto 1monthto  3months  1yearto Qver FRH

demand Imonth  3months  to1year 5 years 5years Undated

VNG T ThT Thx BT T TR Thx
The Company HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-EF——F+-F=+—H Asat31December 2011

R Assets
NeREHEe Cash and short-term funds 38642 8407580 1,675,625 - - - - 10,121,847
RRAA Loan portfolio 5435 524,961 542277 2687505 14313731 9,934,541 5453 28013903
I Investment securities
—WfE — available-for-sale - - - - 294,299 - 2009404 2303703
—REEHH — held-to-maturity - - 93235 772016 3930126 3473771 - 8269148
BRIA Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 20891 208911
44077 8932541 2311137 3459521 18538156 13408312 2223768 48917512
ffi Liabilities
E AR RTFIR Other payable - 7,074 15,691 59666 276498 - - 358929
R AR Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 163059 163059
BERTREEH Debt securities issued - 3636717 890,024 11268017 20,370,403 4,932,046 - 41,097,207

- 3643791 905715 11,327,683 20646901 4932046 1,630,595 43,086,731
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3.5.

162

Bk B AN - MRS ROCER -~ T SRR
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Y Bl g2k o

AN - INCE S AR E S B TME TR
[ 7N 55 ] $2 4 3002 B TR IME TT » 1X
N EARER AR E L5 IE TR
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RE XU
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N—HBRREAME @ HI2KNEICN
AT EN KR ERS - AEEAIRRE LIEXS
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance receivables,
prepayments and other assets, interest payable, accounts
payable, accrued expenses and current income tax liabilities
are expected to be recovered or settled within twelve months
from the reporting date. Other assets and liabilities included in
the statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve months after
the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to providing the
Group with a HK$30 billion revolving credit under the Revolving
Credit Facility. The Facility enables the Group to maintain
smooth operation under exceptional circumstances, so that it
can better fulfil its mandate to promote banking and financial
stability in Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage
insurance which provides cover to the Als for first credit losses of
up to 25%-30% of the property value of a residential mortgage
loan with loan-to-value ratio below 90% at origination, or other
thresholds as specified from time to time. The Group also provides
financial guarantee cover to Als up to 50%-70% of the banking
facilities granted to SMES in Hong Kong and insurance cover to Als
in respect of reverse mortgage loans originated by such Als and
secured on residential properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that
the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of the
resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this
risk is random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk
that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that the
actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the insurance
liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of
claims are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random
and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary
from year to year from the estimate established using statistical
techniques.
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Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected
outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less
likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset of
the portfolio. The Group has developed a business strategy to
diversify the type of insurance risks accepted and within each of
the key categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several
factors. The most significant are a downturn of the economy, a
slump in the local property market and a low mortality rate of
borrowers. Economic downturn, which may cause a rise in
defaulted payment, affects the frequency of claims and collateral
value. A drop in property prices, where the collateral value falls
below the outstanding balance of the mortgage loan, will increase
the severity of claims. Low mortality rate of borrowers means
longer payout period and larger loan balance will be over time.
This will affect the frequency and severity of claims as there is a
risk of the property value insufficient to cover the outstanding loan
balance in the future.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient provision is set
aside for meeting future claim payments, the Group calculates
technical reserves on prudent liability valuation assumptions and
the method prescribed in the regulatory guidelines. The Group also
takes out quota-share reinsurance from its approved mortgage
reinsurers and excess-of-l0ss reinsurance arrangement in an effort
to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage insurance business.
The Group conducts comprehensive assessment including the
financial strength and credit ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in
accordance with the approved selection framework set by the
Credit Committee. The approved mortgage reinsurers are subject
to periodic reviews. For financial guarantee cover provided to Als,
the Group relies on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment on the
borrowers to mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan facility
will be shared proportionately between the Group and the lender
on a pari passu basis to minimise moral hazards. The mortality
assumptions of reverse mortgages are also reviewed on a regular
basis, to assess the risk of larger deviation between the actual and
expected operating results.

As at 31 December 2012, if combined ratio had increased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been HK$4 million (2011: HK$6
million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased by 1%, profit for
the year would have been HK$4 million (2011: HK$6 million) higher.
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3.6. SRAFRARNLTFE 3.6. Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
ANFEETETEXTZENRERIA Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on
B MEAE R E A [RIVEL © relevant market information and the characteristics of the financial

instruments.
T RBER H R T ARERFM SRR TR IZ QT The following table provides an analysis of the carrying amounts
BEEHEINeMA~RAGRNKEES and fair values of financial assets and liabilities not wholly
NFEE - EmHMEHNITE  EANMET presented on the Group’s statement of financial position at their
FHREHAEE > mM=ENNEFEiT fair value. For quoted instruments, bid prices are used to estimate
REMRFE - EFEMIFIEURFER fair values of assets, whereas offer prices are applied for liabilities.
MreEmIA  HATFESHIKEEAR For all other financial instruments that are not measured at fair
BE o value, the fair value is approximately equal to their carrying value.
Mk E{E NN
Carrying value Fair value
2012 2011 2012 2011
THERT FHT FTET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRAE Financial assets
NekEERE Cash and short-term funds 9,715,544 10,245,165 9,715,544 10,245,165
B A S Loan portfolio, net 25,895,399 33,135,818 25,895,399 33,135,818
I35 an Investment securities
— HEEIH — held-to-maturity 9,237,808 8,269,148 9,748,868 8,540,409
o ki Financial liabilities
HoAh 5 3 Other liabilities
— TR — deferred consideration 4,200,129 4,182,266 4,200,129 4,182,266
BEITHRSIES Debt securities issued 36,064,340 40,205,399 36,067,827 40,211,498
BAITIRBIES Mortgage-backed securities
issued 214,672 367,137 214,243 366,404
HrtemI ARNTERNEFER TR ER The following methods and assumptions have been used to
% : estimate the fair values of financial instruments:
(@ NEeREHES (@) Cash and short-term funds
& REHASBERITRER  2E8F Cash and short-term funds include bank deposits. The fair
FE N TEEKEE - EEFR(F value of floating-rate deposits is the carrying amount. The
FEBELTF=MRA)NEITATEET estimated fair value of fixed-rate deposits, which are normally
HIFARZEERNRKESHIITE less than 3 months, is based on discounted cash flows using
T F R RFAFEITEZ TN R prevailing money-market interest rates for debts with similar
= o Bt - TR A FENZTEKE credit risk and remaining maturity. Therefore, the fair value of
(=) the deposits is approximately equal to their carrying value.
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g

©
(D]

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment allowance. An
insignificant portion of loan portfolio bears interest at fixed
rate. Therefore, the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities — held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based on market prices
or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not
available, fair value has been estimated using quoted market
prices for securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted
market prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.

Mortgage-backed securities issued under the MBS
Programme

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on quoted
market prices. For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a
current yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to
maturity.

Other liabilities — deferred consideration

These represent the deferred consideration used for credit
enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“the Government”) in December 2003 and January 2004 with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount.
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®) DFERM

TRIFRAFEBAFREAT IR
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(g) Fair value hierarchy

The following table shows financial instruments recognised at
fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based
on:

m Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1),

m Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2),
and

m Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

AEAREKAH AEARART
The Group and the Company The Group and the Company
F=Z-—F+=A=t-H F-E2——F+-A=1+-H
As at 31 December 2012 As at 31 December 2011

£-F E-R B
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TET THT THT TAT THAT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F= £-F B

B Assets
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 1,443,013 1,443,013 - 1,559,187 1,559,187
EFRR Investment securities

—AEHE — available-for-sale 4,241,650 1,571,177  5812,827 2,009,404 294,299 2,303,703

4,241,650 3,014,190 7,255,840 2,009,404 1,853,486 3,862,890

Ak Liabilities
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments - 175,095 175,095 - 139,582 139,582
MG EER Debt securities issued

PYNSERLATIN designated as at fair value

RaMEXTRS through profit or loss upon

5 initial recognition - 340,287 340,287 = 891,808 891,808

- 515,382 515,382 = 1,031,390 1,031,390

There is no (2011: nil) financial instrument measured at fair
value using a valuation technique that is not supported by
observable market data (Level 3).

BAFETENERIAXXT(ZF
——F: D) EATEARE TR
FEENBETE(BE=R)
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3.7.

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader
concept than the ‘equity” on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

m To comply with the capital requirements set by the Financial
Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Financial Secretary”);

m To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;

m To support the Group’s stability and growth;

m To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based approach to
optimise risk adjusted return to the shareholders; and

m To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of
its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored
daily by the Group’s management in accordance with the
Guidelines on the Capital Adequacy Ratio (“Guidelines”) issued by
the Financial Secretary, by reference largely to Basel Il risk-based
capital adequacy framework. The minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio
("CAR") stipulated in the Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report to the
Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference to the
Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. Any breach or likely
breach of the Guidelines must be reported to the Financial
Secretary. During the year, the Group complied with all of the
capital requirement set out in the Guidelines by the Financial
Secretary.
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TERBEREE T2 RBMRN R ANEARA

The table below summarises the composition of capital base and
the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.

2012 2011

F#BxT FETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

A& AN Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000

R & A Retained profits 5,302,410 5,173,228

NEE %5 Contingency reserves 977,773 731,562

Hbfigg Other reserves 316,484 173,958

eI HI N Non-controlling interest 12,423 12,169
AR E T BT ORI E Allowance for loan impairment under

FTEZ k& collective assessment 4,052 7,622

kR Deductions (20,122) (159,962)

TR DA Total capital base 8,593,020 7,938,577

AN =S Capital Adequacy Ratio 20.2% 19.7%

4, KESIHEITREIZ 4. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

RER KA T — MU ERFE R 7= R ARSIk
FHEEMZ It RBIR - AEHASREIELR
REMAR(BETEXRBR T ARREREH
B EE) - R HEFTE[IT R -

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1, FRAGHRBEKRSE

AREF =D BRI ETHAS AR
B EERETRESMITAKERE
AEH2HMEBERNARASHE &
AR A BURA & A BT A T AR SR L
SRR REBASF R THRAITE
B WFIERX2BREAUNEHESE
RE—RERANETRREE » I
SRR AAER M FARR G 5T -
EERMGITARKASRE - 2EREBEITHK
KEMRENREILEESEXEAEEEN
RELETRER - AEH 2 E QI H
THARRI R & # N B B 69 770K R ARIR
PAZR/MEIT S IR KRR S IRE R ZER o
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4.1.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans before the decrease can be
identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence
may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective
evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio when
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of
future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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4.3.
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4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

Fair value of derivatives

The fair value of financial instruments that are not quoted in active
markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Where
valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine
fair value, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. All models
are validated before they are used, and models are calibrated to
ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market
prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data,
however areas such as credit risk, volatilities and correlations
require management to make estimates. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial
instruments. Sensitivity analysis is set out in Note 3.3.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is
significant or prolonged requires judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the normal
volatility in listed price. In addition, impairment may be appropriate
when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of
the investment, industry and sector performance, changes in
technology, and operational and financing cash flows.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on classifying non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification requires
significant judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to
maturity. If the Group fails to keep these investments to maturity
other than for the specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39 such
as due to significant deterioration of such investments or selling
close to maturity, it will be required to reclassify the entire class as
available-for-sale and measured at fair value, not amortised cost.
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4.5. Profits tax

The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for profits tax.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.

5. Segment analysis

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage business. Other activities
such as debt issuance to fund the mortgage purchase and investment to
reinvest the surplus funds from mortgage receipt are considered
ancillary to mortgage business. The Group is also organised in such a
way that performance is measured at Group level in a single segment for
mortgage business.

Although the mortgage business is managed as a single segment, the
mortgage business is located in four geographical areas, namely Hong
Kong, Korea, Malaysia and China. The segment for Hong Kong includes
mainly the mortgage business in Hong Kong. The segment outside Hong
Kong includes mortgage assets in Korea, an investment in a jointly
controlled entity in Malaysia disposed in December 2012 and an
investment in a subsidiary in Shenzhen, China. The chief operating
decision maker assesses the performance based on geographical
segments.
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operating segments of the Group.

58

Hong Kong
FExT
HK$'000

EHEN
Outside
Hong Kong
F#ET
HK$'000

The following tables represent revenue, profit and other information for

B
Total
TET
HK$'000

BE=-Z——F Year ended 31 December
+=—A=+—HIEFE 2012

A EUA Interest income 1,019,858 115,504 1,135,362
FEXH Interest expense (284,103) (39,160) (323,263)
2 FEMA Net interest income 735,755 76,344 812,099
B A AR ZE 2 A Net premiums earned 533,536 - 533,536
E A Other income 234,850 (2,379) 232,471
ZERA Operating income 1,504,141 73,965 1,578,106
FRRE%K 25 Net claims written back 6,642 - 6,642
HeZ e Net commission expenses (162,541) - (162,541)
ZEL Operating expenses (204,045) (15,222) (219,267)
RHRERTHZLE%M  Operating profit before impairment 1,144,197 58,743 1,202,940
DIFORE Rk Write-back of loan impairment

allowances 5,680 - 5,680
N b FEREEEISEASE R Share of profit of a jointly controlled

entity - 2,450 2,450
KR AR AR A Profit before taxation 1,149,877 61,193 1,211,070
GZas Taxation (85,524)
KF [ 7 Profit for the year 1,125,546
FRNEARFFZ Capital expenditure during the year 11,982 - 11,982
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BB

Hong Kong
FABT
HK$'000

BB AN
Outside
Hong Kong
T
HK$'000

Total
FHIT
HK$'000

HE_T——&F Year ended 31 December 2011
+—A=+—HIEFE
M BWA Interest income 867,718 164,884 1,032,602
FEZH Interest expense (124,694) (53,095) (177,789)
R BUA Net interest income 743,024 111,789 854,813
EOREAR 2R 2 AN Net premiums earned 658,854 - 658,854
LN Other income 206,191 (8,326) 197,865
ZEWA Operating income 1,608,069 103,463 1,711,532
ARE% 2 Net claims written back 17,618 = 17,618
BeZ s Net commission expenses (108,000) = (108,000)
ZEXH Operating expenses (166,875) (25,057) (191,932)
RIDBERTHZ S5 Operating profit before impairment 1,350,812 78,406 1,429,218
TIFOR B % Loan impairment charge (3,147) = (3,141)
N5 FEREEEISEASE R Share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity - 2,830 2,830
B A5 AT v A Profit before taxation 1,347,671 81,236 1,428,907
FH I Taxation (173,225)
NEE i Profit for the year 1,255,682
FERERFX Capital expenditure during the year 22,877 - 22,877
HE L
5E Outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong
FHExT F#&xT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F-EB——F As at 31 December 2012
+=—A=+—H
b2 SG Segment assets 48,366,698 4,498,259 52,864,957
SEMR Segment liabilities 38,878,093 4,374,027 43,252,120
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EB AN
B Outside PR

Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
FHT FATT FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F=F——%F As at 31 December 2011
+=A=+—"H
DIERFE Segment assets 48,982,599 7,388,702 56,371,301
I [F] 42 | SER IR Investment in a jointly controlled entity = 130,045 130,045
" RE Total assets 48,982,599 7,518,747 56,501,346
DERMAR Segment liabilities 40,667,094 7,267,011 47,934,105
6. FIEUAN 6. Interestincome
ZREE A
The Group
2012 2011
F#&T FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
WA E Loan portfolio 584,044 623,425
NekEHRe Cash and short-term funds 213,263 100,937
EHER— kW Investment securities — listed 203,331 98,285
EAER —IEEm Investment securities — unlisted 134,724 209,955
1,135,362 1,032,602
7. FEXH 7. Interest expense

REH
The Group

2012
TR
HK$'000

AT EFRBRZEMPEITHIF ~ Bank loans, debt and MBS issued wholly

B AT S RIZBIE S repayable within 5 years 305,913 151,690

BT RFNBHREENE &TT Debt and MBS issued not wholly repayable
155 RIZIBIE 5 within 5 years 17,350 26,099
323,263 177,789

AEEMEZHBEI2NZBL(ZF——F : Included within interest expenses are HK$321 million (2011: HK$174 million)
1741278 70) HEU A FEZ AT ARZEMNEF  for financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit and loss.

T o
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8. RIBEMKLIBFIFZHYzEM 8. Revenue account for mortgage insurance and
guarantee business

REH
The Group
2012 2011
FH&xT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
ER%E (fHEa) Gross premiums written (Note a) 556,885 644,102
BIRE (R 2% Reinsurance premiums (112,347) (114,569)
1RBG 25520 (Pt )E 28(a)) Net premiums written (Note 28(a)) 444,538 529,533
ROFHER B AR > B AN Decrease in unearned premiums, net 88,998 129,321
BEURHR 22240 (K1)E 28(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 28(a)) 533,536 658,854
FRREFE (M)E 28(b) Net claims written back (Note 28(b)) 6,642 17,618
k&R ERERTR 2 Net premiums earned after provisions 540,178 676,472
BeH commission expenses (188,910) (125,785)
BRE A RIAEE S H Reinsurers’ share of commission expenses 26,369 17,785
BeZ e Net commission expenses (162,541) (108,000)
HREIRFT X AT #IE % Hf Net premiums earned before management
RER 2 expenses 377,637 568,472
B (HED) Management expenses (Note b) (26,450) (29,526)
AR Underwriting gains 351,187 538,946
BHHE : Note:
(@) FREBEFERGIFIBRERS - N2 (@ Gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage
PR ERNDIEREIBRE REEZIR insurance cover on mortgage loans with a small portion of
BHRE o guarantee fees written from guarantee business on loans to

SMEs and premiums written from mortgage insurance cover
on reverse mortgage loans.

b)) EBEFXAMEI0ZE L —E (b) Management expenses formed part of the operating
9 0 expenses in Note 10.
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9. HAtbgA

9. Otherincome

ZREE
The Group
2012 2011
F#&T FHETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
IR R A RIS HA T 3K Early prepayment fees and late charges 5,059 14,903
LR ZEN Exchange difference 29,937 51,049
BT AN ELD S Net change in fair value of financial
instruments 12,850 3,366
AT E ETRR R AR EMA Dividend income from available-for-sale
listed investments 90,135 65,071
HERRA RS 2 (K1E12) Net gain on disposal of investments (Note 12) 90,260 64,952
HH B R ) SRR IR A i e Gain on disposal of investment in a jointly
(Fff)E23) controlled entity (Note 23) 7,137 -
Hb Others (2,907) (1,476)
232,471 197,865

SHTANFEZIHEI TUTIIA LR : ()
EEARXNFENFON R TEAFESHRITIIZ
B (ZF——F : Wz56,400 78 7T) BRI b
MEAFERZI1IZETL(ZE——F : 51
5700 37 7T) « R () THFERARNASIT AR
METENFEWZE7IO0OFBT(ZTE——F:
10078 70) RIBEURAFEZAITABRSHE &
TRSEEAFESTR0 T BT (ZF——F
500 738 7T) °

Change in fair value of financial instruments represents the aggregate of
(i) HK$170 million fair value loss on hedging instruments designated as
fair value hedge (2011: HK$64 million gain) and HK$181 million fair value
gain on the hedged items (2011: HK$57 million loss); and (i) HK$7 million
fair value gain on derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes (2011: HK$1 million) and HK$5 million fair value loss on debt
securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2011:
HK$5 million).
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10. &EZH 10. Operating expenses
REH
The Group

2012 2011
F#ET T4
HK$°000 HK$'000

f@ R AR Staff costs
e KAEF Salaries and benefits 135,497 124,411
BRESRK A — R EMRTIATL Pension costs — defined contribution plans 7.458 6,396

DAE Premises
e Rental 19,618 9,929
HAftb Others 8,747 6,311
o Directors’ emoluments - =
718 (BfF5E25) Depreciation (Note 25) 14,127 8,609
W2 E MRS Financial information services 5,756 5,627
551 =) 2% Consultancy fees 7,547 9,615
TS RS EYH Marketing and advertising expenses 6,914 8,135
EMAESH Other operating expenses 13,603 12,899
219,267 191,932
1. %EHEH £ 11. Auditor’s remuneration
R EE
The Group

2012 2011
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HZRS Audit services 1,366 938
H AR Other services 433 1,068
1,799 2,006
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12. &R FTHIY T S E0 12. Net gain on disposal of investments

R
The Group
2012
F#&T
HK$'000
HER TN S Net gain on disposal of investments:
— T T—A—HETHENRN — realisation of amounts recognised in
IR FR I (FT)E32) reserves up to 1 January (note 32) 38,230 51,884
— RFEE =AW 25 — net gain arising in current year 52,030 13,068
90,260 64,952
13. RWBERE (%%F) 13. Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment
allowances
ZREE A
The Group
2012 2011
FHT FBTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RRORERK (k%) Write-back/(charge) of loan impairment
— A& 1FE (FTE 20(b)) allowances — collective assessment
(Note 20 (b)) 5,680 (3,141)
14. FRIN 14. Taxation
(a) FEAWERAIBIFING : (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income statement
represents:
ZREE
The Group
2012 2011
F#&T FAETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFEH Hong Kong profits tax
— HEAFTISE — Current income tax 81,940 169,114
— JAFERE — Adjustment in respect of prior years (14) =
81,926 169,114
B AN Taxation outside Hong Kong
— HHAFTER — Current income tax 521 =
128 REA 1 Deferred taxation
— ARFELTH — Charge for current year 3,077 4,111
85,524 173,225
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AN F B 5T A Bl T BOR B s A R Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5% (=& — —4F : 16.5%) B9 B & 1t (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
REBNEHHKE - W TEBBUING For subsidiary operating outside Hong Kong, tax rate prevailing
ERNMEAR - SRFEERESEMER in the relevant country is used. Deferred taxation is calculated
BB R IT E o 3 B I A BRI in full on temporary differences under the liability method
165%( —F——F : 165%) NEBFH using a principal taxation rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%).

Kt E SR EH -

RERAMBRBREN OIS XAES The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from
MEITEMNRILSTNESFOT ¢ the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate
of Hong Kong as follows:

ZREE
The Group

2012 2011

F&T FAETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FRELRT R Profit before taxation 1,211,070 1,428,907
#165% (—F——4 : Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

16.5%) 9FE R+ & (2011:16.5%) 199,827 235,770
R 7 2 (A7 ] S5k g A Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly

Rl controlled entity (404) (467)

BT IR A Income not subject to taxation (135,314) (89,138)

A FF 2 Expenses not deductible for taxation

purposes 21,429 27,060

TAEFE IR Adjustment in respect of prior years (14) =

TR 2 Taxation charge 85,524 173,225

(b) M RRERABIBIILE A - (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial

position represents:

R KAF
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FET FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
X HARR T AR i Current income tax
liabilities 101,587 134,785 100,563 135,131
1 AR IS 7 Deferred income tax
liabilities 109,404 52,672 109,103 52,696
210,991 187,457 209,666 187,827
FZE—=—FR=_F——F+=H4 There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at 31
=+—H  BIEEAERRKZHTER December 2012 and 2011.
IJﬁ\ o
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BIERIN (A=) /P RE = BAKE S

The major components of deferred income tax (assets)/

RERNTHIT : liabilities and the movements during the year are as follows:
REH
The Group
RERE
EHITIH  Impairment
Accelerated allowances AFEEZ HERXH
tax and Fairvalue  Cash flow BE
depreciation  provisions changes hedges Total
TAT THL THL TAEx THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-Z——F—F—H Asat1lanuary 2011 3,241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
TR MR Charged to the income
Statement 1,805 2,306 - - 4,111
TG mNE (F332)  Charged to equity (Note 32) - - 9,316 2,078 11,394
F-F2—F As at 31 December 2011
+-A=+—-H 5,046 (9,468) 59,711 (2,617) 52,672
FlhzE R R MR Charged to the income
statement 19 3,058 - = 3,077
TR (MHE32)  Charged to equity (Note 32) = = 52,748 907 53,655
F-E-—=f As at 31 December 2012
+=HA=t—-H 5,065 (6,410) 112,459 (1,710) 109,404
PN
The Company
REXE
EBRBUTIE  Impairment
Accelerated allowances AFEXZ HEHEXF
tax and Fairvalue  Cash flow BH
depreciation  provisions changes hedges Total
TAT TEx TAT TEx TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-F——F—F—H Asat1lanuary 2011 3241 (11,774) 50,395 (4,695) 37,167
TR MM Charged to the income
statement 1,805 2,330 = = 4,135
TRk (FHE32)  Charged to equity (Note 32) - - 9,316 2,078 11,394
F_E2—F As at 31 December 2011
+-A=+—-H 5,046 (9,444) 59,711 (2,617) 52,696
Tz Mg Charged to the income
Statement 19 2,733 - - 2,752
TREAMS (FE32)  Charged to equity (Note 32) - - 52,748 907 53,655
F-E-—F As at 31 December 2012
+=HA=t—-H 5,065 (6,711) 112,459 (1,710) 109,103

TH=ZMAR  TEFMERNRERIA
=/ RBE RS

There is no significant amount of deferred income tax assets/
liabilities to be settled within 12 months.
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15. REEHF 15. Profit for the year

RN B S5 3R R P AR S E s K 9 1,097,537,000  The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial statements of the
BT (ZZF——14F 1 1,226,370,000787C) ° Company to the extent of HK$1,097,537,000 (2011: HK$1,226,370,000).
16.Fz B 16. Dividend

PN
The Company

2012 2011
TExT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

LR BB E®AR0.3758 7T Proposed dividend of HK$0.375
—FE——F :0175%87T) (2011: HK$0.175) per ordinary share 750,000 350,000

FZE—FMN=F——FEMNH=ZZFT——FM The dividend paid in 2012 and 2011 in respect of 2011 and 2010 were
—E-TFEEFREWWNISLZAET(ERE®A  both HK$350 million (HK$0.175 per ordinary share). The directors
0175%87) c TZE—=FWA+HH ' EFE proposed a final dividend in respect of 2012 of HK$0.375 per ordinary
WIRAZEF ——FREREFKEBA0375%8  share on 15 April 2013. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a
TC e BERRERAMEN - BURREHALFR  dividend payable until it has been approved by shareholders.

NATRRE ©

17. e REHAE 17. Cash and short-term funds
IR KA T
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
THERT FATT FTET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BN Cash at banks 185,886 43499 180,602 38,642
ROTTHER Time deposits with banks 9,529,658 10,201,666 9,407,741 10,083,205
9,715,544 10,245,165 9,588,343 10,121,847

gUeRERMs e hkERIESIME B For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
TERSZBBEIT="ARE NSRS - equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
months" maturity from the date of transaction.

AR AT

The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FEx FHT FEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RiTUl& Cash at banks 185,886 43,499 180,602 38,642
RITEHFR Time deposits with banks 1,018,243 9,942,514 896,326 9,936,345
NeLRERIN ST B Cash and cash equivalents 1,204,129 9,986,013 1,076,928 9,974,987
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F=2——F+-A=+—HoU&EERISE Cashand cash equivalents as at 31 December 2012 included guarantee
ME - BEEPNERAERITYTOERMEE  fee of HK$140,241,000 received under the special concessionary
it BT U 21 9 8 R 28 140,241,00078 7T (FF5£27) © measures of the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 27).

18. MU HI B2 A&ICFK 18. Interest and remittance receivables
REH PN
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FET FAT FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT &350 9 57 W ) &, Interest receivable from
— FIRIBHAEY — interest rate swap contracts 223,426 240,949 223,426 240,949
— IEHRR — investment securities 99,950 88,046 99,950 88,046
— ROTTEHER — time deposits with banks 20,857 12,461 20,146 11,861
TR S B SR B Interest receivable and
N3 Bifd 3R instalments, in transit from
loan portfolio 125,357 249 542 116,893 237,214
469,590 590,998 460,415 578,070
19. iITEEmMITE 19. Derivative financial instruments

() X AHTETR

AREHE A TANTAE T AN AR
SN

$RARE I N LA —EBH SRS
S—HIASRENHAE - RS BUED
HHEKFAEBSHAEFEMR - FRET
BMmiEHSN - ZERXH T REBRA
£ o ARHEMETNR RSN FRE
BTEREMEERHEHNEEK
Ko REHASEJPTATE  BULEY
WAL P - EmizeRBERSENA
RN ©

(a) Use of derivative

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to hedge
the Group's financial risks.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in an
economic exchange of currencies or interest rates or a
combination of all these. No exchange of principal takes place
except for certain currency swaps. The Group's credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if
counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the current
fair value, a proportion of the notional amount of the contracts
and the liquidity of the market.
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HETMERESRTANRNET - ATH
SRR TREHR M LBRAE
I ERDRE R ARRI S REH
SPHTALFOAFE Bt H P
BERMRA S H @ IR M E RN
Bl 32 17 17 A 2R RO AR X H SRR E R
o STHETAr RN AREE=E5
(RP=) AR (A EMW- ITEE
BTANAHRBUSHF LT - LrA
MEANEMEE - RIOTESRAS K
Iz 2 BE - ATRETE AIRR S -
FRBENITET AR FEFET IX -

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised on
the statement of financial position but do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or price risks. The
derivative instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in market
interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms.
The aggregate contractual or notional amount of derivative
financial instruments on hand, the extent to which instruments
are favourable or unfavourable, and thus the aggregate fair
values of derivative financial assets and liabilities, can fluctuate
significantly from time to time. The fair values of derivative
instruments held are set out below.

AEAREKADT
The Group and the Company

&4/
;M AYHE & NEE
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values
notional BiE= Ak notional Ri= ki
amount Assets Liabilities amount Assets Liabilities
THT THT THT TR THET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

0 MEERAIR2

Derivatives not qualified as

FERTAETR hedges for accounting
puUrposes

kS ki Interest rate swaps 3,494,637 54,383 (4,541)  54489% 63,220 (13,880)
i Hy Currency swaps 3,491,405 19,421 - 7,890,297 11,696 (12,884)
73,804 (4,541) 74,916 (26,764)

(i) RFERHITEIA (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
Fll&ia Interest rate swaps 16,785,925 1,226,686 (252) 21,418,545 1,250,727 (18,607)
Gank: Currency swaps 17,464,320 142,523 (170,302) 16,503,853 233,544 (94,211)
1,369,209 (170,554) 1,484,271 (112,818)

BRIAMTERS/ Total recognised derivative

(ffi) B& assets/(liabilities) 1,443,013  (175,095) 1,559,187 (139,582)
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(b) X3 i & Zh

WOTET RN A FENPEIA RN
o RSHAEME - AKE A X8
RIK o REFAORXFENHEEBER
TREREE R1THRFIES A FEREE
B BN S BRI R XS SN RS
MR EMEMER - T-F——F+=
HA=1—8  JFXEMEE AN RIS
HOTETE(ZE——F: %)

(o) EERARBAERKE XK

EERANEERETNEEAEIER
PTET A/ HMA - BEARKERNX
b & AR IRIE R ANTE R LL R IF BT E A
BH o AREANREE R H I FIEL
BT ©

METESGANEER AR EERKE
BN ESIMET T - REST|MHALIT
ASERGHFHIRMAEELZHN
M ©

(b) Hedging activities

Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group’s
fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change in fair
value of underlying debt securities issued. There were no
derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31 December
2012 (2011: nil).

(c) Replacement costs and potential future credit

exposures

The replacement costs represent the cost of replacing all
derivative contracts that have a positive value when marked to
market. The potential future credit exposure amounts refer to
the amount as computed in accordance with the Guidelines on
the Capital Adequacy Ratio. The Group has not experienced
any non-performance by its counterparties.

The replacement costs and potential future credit exposure
amounts of the derivative contracts are as follows. These
amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral
netting arrangements with the counterparties.

EEARAKAT
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
BERRK BIEARK
EEAM B B
BERAE Potential EENA Potential
Replacement  future credit Replacement future credit
cost exposure cost exposure
FExT THET TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEREL Interest rate contracts
— F|E & HR — Interest rate swaps 1,438,514 99,888 1,527,223 131,599
LEREY Exchange rate contracts
— s H — Currency swaps 180,484 571,814 263,227 806,232

1,618,998 671,702 1,790,450 937,831
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20. SYFRE B FEN 20. Loan portfolio, net
(a) RREEHIKEF (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
rEH b YN
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
TET FAET T TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BIBRTER Mortgage portfolio
= Residential
— &R — Hong Kong 16,530,736 20,402,305 12,584,243 15,442,530
— &4 — Qverseas 4,355,258 7,239,972 4,355,258 7,239,972
Al Commercial 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000
WA AE Securitised portfolio
(B$)E34) (Note 34) - 169,762 - -
FRBEITRAS Non-mortgage portfolio 1,013,457 1,331,401 1,008,332 1,331,401
25,899,451 33,143,440 21,947,833 28,013,903
RHAELE Allowance for loan
impairment (4,052) (7,622) (4,030) (7,478)
25,895,399 33,135,818 21,943,803 28,006,425
T2 ZF+-A=1t—H0 HUEXK As at 31 December 2012, the mortgage portfolio had a
BHONEEUE - RARITARNIZIE weighted average remaining term of 11 years (2011: 11 years)
FIREEROWBERT @ RIBIIHRAEH on a contractual basis, without taking into account any
IBCEE E BRI —F(ZF——%F ¢ prepayment of local mortgage loans. Final maturity of the
+—F)  RERREAARRTF=-F mortgage portfolio is in the year 2052 (2011: 2050).
A-FEH - (ZF——F: ZFHT
%)
BRRORER S SN RERAE MAREL Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
REEBROBEILLAT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:

A KATF
The Group The Company

2012 2012

RHORMMEEEEE  Total allowance for loan

HREHES B impairment as a
COlER s percentage of the
gross loan portfolio 0.02% 0.02% 0.02% 0.03%
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(b) BB EARAESHERBERE (b) Allowance for loan impairment on mortgage portfolio

REH AATH
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
THERT FTAT FTHEx FHL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEWE Collective assessment
FT—H—H As at 1 January 7,622 2,029 7,478 2,027
FhEERR (Released)/charged to
(%m@),/ % & income statement
(% 13) (Note 13) (5,680) 3,141 (5,558) 2,999
LB 2 S BTk Recoveries of loans
previously written off 2,110 2,452 2,110 2,452
F+=ZHA=+—H As at 31 December 4,052 7,622 4,030 7,478
TR RURER &8 - B ERIBRITK Allowance for loan impairment was made after taking into
FHEIR G A B BTTHE - MBI RE account the current market value of the collateral of the
WIRIB LI A S EL R EE & © delinquent loan. There is no impairment provided for overseas
and commercial mortgage portfolio.
LAAEA TN BB BB TR T Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a portfolio
T basis are analysed as follows:

REH AT
The Group The Company

2012 201 2012 2011
TRT TAT TRT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HERZAES B Gross impaired loan

portfolio 2,197 4,923 2,197 4,923

REORERL R Allowance for loan
impairment (380) (591) (380) (591)
1,817 4,332 1,817 4,332

FORER RS Allowance for loan

RERTEE impairment as a
EFMB DL percentage of gross
impaired loan portfolio 17.3% 12.0% 17.3% 12.0%

BERTES BE  Gross impaired loan
HRRES AR portfolio as a percentage
=R of gross loan portfolio 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.02%
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REH Y YN
The Group The Company

2012 20 2012 2011
TR TAT TR TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

IABAF AT Allowance for loan

IR impairment under
K BH B FRFTIE collective assessment for
WA ER % loans not individually
identified as impaired 3,672 7,031 3,650 6,887
(c) SREAAHMAREFIR RS (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan

portfolio

AERARAADTE
The Group and the Company

2012
BRI Bz W 58 £9 RRHEEH HENKES
MIHE FE WA FRI S B
Present value Interest Total

of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FHET FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T oA HAE S W EkI :  Amounts receivable:

——FNR — within one year 89,919 18,210 108,129
——SFEEREN — after one year but within

five years 312,425 56,765 369,190

—hERF — after five years 605,988 68,806 674,794

1,008,332 143,781 1,152,113
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ANELH R AR A )

The Group and the Company

=R U 29
HIIE
Present value
of minimum
lease
payments
receivable
T
HK$'000

2011

RSk HA 8] &9
FLEMA
Interest Total
income minimum
relating to lease
future payments
periods receivable
FATT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

3 IVE D)

F AR R IR RZURFRIR : Amounts receivable:
— &R — within one year 110,457 24,274 134,731
— FEERFAH — after one year but within
five years 399,125 76,599 475,724
—hEF — after five years 821,819 97,583 919,402
1,331,401 198,456 1,529,857

T=-F——-&F+-A=+—HBHER=%
——®#tZA=t—R FREARAR
A3 70 3t b 53 7R 5 RLOR A R B

There is no impairment allowance for finance lease receivable
as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 of the Group

and the Company.
% o
21. IEHKR 21. Investment securities

(a) ATt ik %

(a) Available-for-sale securities

REF KA A F]
The Group and the Company

2012 2011
TR TAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

RANFETIKEESIES  Debt securities at fair value

TEBEINLT Listed outside Hong Kong 334,014 —

EE™ Unlisted 2,160,316 294,299
AT ESRKBEMIE%S  Other securities at fair value

FTEHEEL™M Listed in Hong Kong 3,318,497 2,009,404
AEEEIE A B AT Total available-for-sale securities 5,812,827 2,303,703

HMIEAIER S EEES NE =% Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real estate

investment trust.
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B EATHL M ZE B 5 47 AT 4 1 B 5 10 Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
D issuers as follows:
REARARD T
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
TFHExT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R1T R EH Ab & RATLAT Banks and other financial institutions 1,834,625 294,299
NENM Public sector entities 295,448 -
AR R Central government 364,257 =
Hih Others 3,318,497 2,009,404
5,812,827 2,303,703
AR B SRR BLR T The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:
AEHAREAF
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
FHET FHIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
+—H—H As at 1 January 2,303,703 3,403,966
%40 Additions 4,161,064 645,167
& K [E Sale and redemption (1,011,501) (1,853,946)
PiE4H Amortisation 4,535 931
N EZ Change in fair value 357,875 107,682
SNTOL R Z A Exchange difference (2,849) 97)
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 5,812,827 2,303,703
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(b) BEEEZRHIESH (b) Held-to-maturity securities

IREEF R ASA A
The Group and the Company

2012 2011
FTERT T
HK$'000 HK$°000

RPERE R NI K B R $51E % Debt securities at amortised cost

TEELEM Listed in Hong Kong 2,532,909 1,495,927

FTEBEIN ETH Listed outside Hong Kong 2,953,324 3,029,614

5,486,233 4,525,541

EET Unlisted 3,751,575 3,743,607

b= Sl bR s =R Total held-to-maturity securities 9,237,808 8,269,148
EmIESATE Market value of listed securities

—RAEEIH — held-to-maturity 5,815,111 4,692,973

BEATHZERI D155 E 2| BjF 500 Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
™ issuers as follows:
AR R A A F]

The Group and the Company

2012 2011

FH&xT FHTT

HK$'000 HK$'000

RITRE M SR Banks and other financial institutions 5,120,077 5,198,773

NCTR=I Corporate entities 2,043,777 1,294,334

NENH Public sector entities 1,267,853 894,070

HR RS Central governments 767,362 830,863

Efb Others 38,739 51,108

9,237,808 8,269,148
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BBEEIESFNENFRAT The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised as
follows:
REARARD T

The Group and the Company

2012 2011

FHET FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

T—H—H As at 1 January 8,269,148 8,033,133

30 Additions 1,926,101 1,743,272
& &g [e Sale and redemption (957,690) (1,508,858)
5 Amortisation (12,520) (10,761)

SNTSE R ZE 5N Exchange difference 12,769 12,362
F+=—HA=+—H AS at 31 December 9,237,808 8,269,148
22. B AARRA 22. Interests in subsidiaries
KAF
The Company

2012 2011

FH&xT T4

HK$°000 HK$'000

JEETRS  BRARE Unlisted shares, at cost 103,060 103,060
IEPNGIZ &80l Due from a subsidiary 3,840,609 4,883,648
3,943,669 4,986,708

ME A RIEFTRFIM AR R E LA - 7% The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured and has no fixed term of
MIAFEITE - repayment. Interest is charged at market rates.
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FZZE—=—F+=-A=+—H HELARHNIFE The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are:
IR

At BR 3L b s B AT/ BIEMBRAFRE P 35 bR AR AR
Place of FEWISH Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation Principal activities registered capital equity held
EBLRBEEAR AR B TGN R EBRB\OIE 1,000,000 7T 100%
BRETBREEBEIAT
HKMC Mortgage Management Hong Kong Mortgage purchases HK$1,000,000 of HK$1 100%
Limited and servicing ordinary share each
RN E R E R R B R H LB FIE R S AR MZITEM R A 90%
BRAF]
Bauhinia HKMC Corporation PRC Mortgage guarantee RMB100 million registered 90%
Limited business capital
23. H[EHEHIEEFRRA 23. Investment in a jointly controlled entity
AR EE
The Group
2012 2011
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
F—H—H As at 1 January 130,045 130,720
R FAINfE B 5 892 Share of profit, net of tax 2,450 2,830
ANTSE L Z 50 (BE32) Exchange differences (Note 32) 5,276 (3,784)
HMNEES — A FERS Other equity movement — fair value reserve
(Ff3E32) (Note 32) (32) 279
L HE[RIR i SRR IR 7 Disposal of investment in a jointly controlled
entity (137,739) =
F+=Z—A=+—H As at 31 December - 130,045

bINNET|
The Company

2012 2011
FTERT TAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

E LRS- KNAE Unlisted shares, at cost - 120,554

TE——F+-R AEHATKEHEEZTS  In December 2012, the Group completed the disposal of all its interest in
kP8 AR (R 15 DT AR B R L S H B IR IS4 a jointly controlled entity, Cagamas HKMC Berhad, with the principal
Cagamas HKMC Berhad 8 BT 5 Xz - L& M activities of mortgage guaranty business in Malaysia, at a cash
1.371Z&7T » consideration of HK$137 million.
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i Y LR B SRR R FE R A G T The following are the assets and liabilities of the jointly controlled entity
disposed of:
FAT
HK$'000
AR = Current assets 138,221
ma R Current liabilities (482)
HER SR Net assets disposed of 137,739
ZRMEC SN T EE S Cumulative exchange gain and fair value reserves
(fHE32) (Note 32) (7,733)
o s Gain on disposal 7,137
(i) Consideration 137,143

F_E——F+-_F=+—8 KAEHEFTH*HE Asat 31 December 2011, assets and liabilities of the jointly controlled
B ¥ 6 SER B R = A BREY L ES - 2 Bl entity in respect of the Group’s interest are HK$130,709,000 and

130,709,000 7% 7T 1 664,000 4 IT, © HK$664,000, respectively.
24. TUTRIN ~ IEREMEAF 24. Prepayments, deposits and other assets
REH AT
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
THERT THT TET THAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
W Bl % 7= Repossessed assets 2,024 454 957 454
UNGIES 35t Corporate club debentures 750 750 750 750
RURAT & () Dividend receivable from
RRRE available-for-sale
investments (listed) 22,185 14,363 22,185 14,363
H Ay R RN Other receivable - - 7,984 161,268
Hith Others 14,682 11,530 14,644 11,952
39,641 27,097 46,520 188,787

H i 87 U 300 =2 5 45 Bauhinia MBS Limited BA:  Other receivable represented the amount drawn by Bauhinia MBS
EHZIBIEH 1 1T X AT THIIRIBIE S - Limited for the redemption of the MBS issued under the MBS
Programme.
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25. Fixed assets

HEWLES
Leasehold
improvement
TAT
HK$'000

equipment,
furniture
and fixtures
AT
HK$'000

b i
The Group

& i
Computers

TEL
HK$'000

A
Motor
vehicle
T
HK$'000

Ié\ﬁ
Total
THT
HK$'000

T-2—%-HA-H Net book amount as at 1 January 2011
mﬁﬁ/ﬁ%)\ 285 733 16,234 - 17,252
NE Additions 4,207 842 17,828 - 22877
T/ 1R Disposal/write-off = (258) (28) - (286)
1A (Ff)£ 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (335) (335) (7,939) - (8,609
LI NI AT Exchange adjustments - 14 26 - 40
F-5——%+-A Net book amount as at 31 December 2011
_+ A K240 4,157 996 26,121 - 31,274
HE Additions 124 93 11,341 424 11,982
18 (F$H%10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) (1,579) (381) (12,061) (106) (14,127)
HPICR AR Exchange adjustments - - () - i)
F-E-—&£+=FH Net book amount as at
=+ —HAKE R 31 December 2012 2,702 708 25,400 318 29,128
F-E-—F+=8 As at 31 December 2012
Er="[
AR Cost 13,042 7,158 156,479 650 177,329
23tH71A Accumulated depreciation (10,340) (6,450) (131,079) (332) (148,201)
R E Net book amount 2,702 708 25,400 318 29,128
F-2——%+ZA As at 31 December 2011
_+ H
AE Cost 12,918 7,085 151,016 226 171,245
2itH71A Accumulated depreciation (8,761) (6,089) (124,895) (226) (139.971)
NERERY Net book amount 4,157 996 26,121 - 31,274
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Vi UN|
The Company
PRAERE
FhRER
office

AEMLEE  equipment, A%
Leasehold furniture Y Motor B&
improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
THET TAL THET TAT THEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F--——#—F—R  Netbookamountasat 1 January 2011

VFEE/%\ 182 353 15,445 — 15,980
NE Additions 4,207 842 17,828 - 22877
IR Depreciation charge (232) (204) (7.472) - (7,908)

F-E——&+-F Net book amount as at 31 December 2011

Z‘I‘ BiKE 24 4,157 991 25,801 = 30,949
NE Additions 124 93 11,341 24 11,982
Gl Depreciation charge (1,579 (376) (11,754) (106) (13,815)

F-&--F+=A Net book amount as at
=+—AkE#E 31 December 2012 2,702 708 25,388 318 29,116

F-E-—£+-f As at 31 December 2012

=t+-H
RAE Cost 13,042 7.130 155,058 650 175,880
2itH7/A Accumulated depreciation (10,340) (6,422) (129,670) (332) (146,764)
K2 E Net book amount 2,702 708 25,388 318 29,116

F-F——&+-f As at 31 December 2011

:+ B
RAE Cost 12,918 7,057 149,606 226 169,807
2914IR Accumulated depreciation (8,767) (6,066) (123,805) (226) (138,858)
iR Net book amount 4,157 991 25,801 = 30,949
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26. RzfFI 2

26. Interest payable

REH AT
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
FTHERT FAT THERT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PAT & IR 215 71 2, Interest payable from
— BRITRSFUES — debt securities issued 200,951 226,895 200,951 226,895
— FIEBEE Y — interest rate swap contracts 33,488 9,128 33,488 9,128
— BRITIRIBIES & — mortgage-backed securities
H A 53 issued and other liabilities 1,317 1,221 1,247 1,105
235,756 237,244 235,686 237,128

27rﬁ%m Br{+ 7 32 B E Ath 52

27. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
liabilities

r&H
The Group

PN
The Company
2012
TER
HK$'000

2012
TERx
HK$'000

201
TAT
HK$'000

201
TAT
HK$'000

ISV IVENpi3 Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 102,628 74,215 114,767 74,407
E AR5 IR Other payable - — 210,474 358,929
H At 5 i Other liabilities 4,340,370 4,182,266 4,340,370 4,182,266
Hk % Other provision 22,118 18,402 22,118 18,402
4,465,116 4,274,883 4,687,729 4,634,004

Hip st MR BRI T EAMLE
18 1 AT 4R 2 RO 1848 22 140,241 0005%7_3(:3 -
F k) (fHE38)  SRERT-FT=F1+=
AR —FTME— A B BRFWRMNIREEHRE T
22 HE A58 15 76 B 13 3E (X411 4,200,129,00078 7T (=
T——4F : 4,182,266,0007T) °

HE-FT——F+-A=+—H0 ARALZitH
Bauhinia MBS Limited i & 3012 /8 JT #2 18 57 5K 1
FAf - HRESREREREFES50EE B
INRBIIFN [FRAE 2] - URTF [HA N
I 5830 #81A—2% K1+ Bauhinia MBS Limited # £
e FZE—=—F+_A=+—H ' ARaW%
R 3% R 9 B A R 45 FRIR R 210,474,000 7T (=
F——4 : 358,929,000 T) °

Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee of HK$140,241,000 (2011
HKS$nil) received under the special concessionary measures of the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 38) and the deferred consideration
of HK$4,200,129,000 (2011: HK$4,182,266,000) used for credit
enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from the Government
in December 2003 and January 2004.

Up to 31 December 2012, the Company sold HK$3 billion of mortgage
loans in aggregate to Bauhinia MBS Limited for securitisation, in which,
the Company continues to recognise the mortgage loans in “Loan
portfolio, net” to the extent of the guarantee and continuing
involvement. A liability due to Bauhinia MBS Limited shown as “Other
payable” has also been recognised. As at 31 December 2012, other
payable was HK$210,474,000 (2011: HK$358,929,000) in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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28. R UER BRI A 28. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

&R &R
The Group The Group

2012 2011

£ BRE i} E& BiRK peik
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TET TET TER THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

KEHRERBREHKZ  Provision for unearned premiums and

guarantee fees 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449

RREREE Provision for outstanding claims
—BER/ (R RER — claims reported/(recovery) 8,228 (2) 8,230 1,881 ¥ 1,883
—EFEBRRREER — claims incurred but not reported 41,579 6,404 35,175 59,798 9,446 50,352
49,807 6,402 43,405 61,679 9,444 52,235

1,545,863 222,007 1,323,856 1,630,595 208,911 1,421,684

AT KA
The Company The Company
2012 201

£ ) BRE .2 1) E BIRE

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance

FER FER FER FBL FBL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

KEHRERBREHKRZ  Provision for unearned premiums and

guarantee fees 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449

RREREE Provision for outstanding claims
—BER/(HE)BR — claims reportedy/(recovery) 8,228 (2) 8,230 1,881 ) 1,883
—EBFERRBRER — claims incurred but not reported 43,792 6,769 37,023 59,798 9,446 50,352
52,020 6,767 45,253 61,679 9,444 52,235

1,548,076 222,372 1,325,704 1,630,595 208,911 1,421,684
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Q) RHHRERERERARKEZY (a) Analysis of movements in provision for unearned
ST premiums and guarantee fees

AEAREKAH
The Group and the Company

2012 2011
E5 BRE A E3 BIRE e il
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
THT THT THT THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T—A—H As at 1 January 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449 1,689,054 190,284 1,498,770
BURER{R 2% (FHE8) Premiums written (Note 8) 556,885 112,347 444,538 644,102 114,569 529,533
B RS (T 8) Premiums earned (Note 8) (629,745) (96,209) (533,536) (764,240) (105,386) (658,854)
Ft=A=t+-8 As at 31 December 1,496,056 215,605 1,280,451 1,568,916 199,467 1,369,449
(b) RAHERETHOHUNT (b) Analysis of movements in provision for outstanding
claims

AEH REH
The Group The Group
2012 2011

e BRE B E4 BIRE P
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
THT THT THT THT THT THIT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

b=l =! As at 1 January 61,679 9,444 52,235 84,611 14,607 70,004
BRHER Claims paid (2,479) (285) (2,194) (690) - (690)
B O ER Claims recovery 53 47 6 764 225 539
BEERR(FTES) Claims incurred (Note 8)
—BHERER — claims reported 8,772 238 8,534 1,807 (63) 1,870
—BFEEERBIRAR  — claims incurred but not

reported (18,218) (3,042) (15,176) (24,813) (5,325) (19,488)
F+=-A=+—~H As at 31 December 49,807 6,402 43,405 61,679 9,444 52,235
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LN YN
The Company The Company
2012 2011

E2 ] BRE -4 ESH] BiRk pe:2 1
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
THER TEx TEx AT AT AT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-A-H Asat 1 January 61,679 9,444 52,235 84,611 14,607 70,004
BffEZ Claims paid (2,662) (285) (2,377) (690) = (690)
EUEEES Claims recovery 53 47 6 764 225 539
BFEHR Claims incurred
— BHRRR — claims reported 8,955 238 8,717 1,807 (63) 1,870
— B ERRRER — claims incurred but not
reported (16,005) (2,677) (13,328) (24,813) (5,325) (19,488)
F+=A=1+-H As at 31 December 52,020 6,767 45,253 61,679 9,444 52,035
(c) faf&R 7 B ik (c) Liability adequacy test
HITAGFERNEE - EE2IELHI The liability adequacy test considers current estimates of all
EnEMRRLEBEFAEEXIERE contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as
IR MXERF2F—=4F claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at 31 December
F+TZA=+—Bk=F——%F+=HA 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group's insurance liabilities
=+—HB  TEHERBRE AL o are adequate.
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29. ERITRFBIES

29. Debt securities issued

AEHARAEAT
The Group and the Company

2012
TR
HK$'000

2011
TAET
HK$'000

T2 9 45 B A 51 ik B 457 55 E 35 Debt securities carried at amortised cost
%5 TRITRIRS DIP notes 559,800 2,199,566
R A A TTIT R G MTN notes 2,832,695 1,497,209
YR 5 B 7R 1 K 89 (R 51 25 .5 Total debt securities carried at amortised cost 3,392,495 3,696,775
EE S X R B H LA FEX A Debt securities designated as hedged

W9 3R 55 35 items under fair value hedge
i TR RIS DIP notes 9,079,358 12,949,071
TEMFEITITHI R E AR RBIP and other notes 50,999 50,488
h B 5 & Tt E A MTN notes 23,541,488 23,509,065
HERE R AR B F LA FE XS+ Total debt securities designated as hedged

RS 5 B0 items under fair value hedge 32,671,845 36,508,624
THBHEIANIEE N U ATE Debt securities designated as at

Tt AR B R S E fair value through profit or loss

upon initial recognition

55 TR RIS DIP notes 138,996 697,917
FTEBEERITIHY R EMESE RBIP and other notes 201,291 193,891
TN I E AL FE Total debt securities designated as at

b T AR ER ) R S5 1UE 27 5 AT fair value through profit or loss upon

initial recognition 340,287 891,808

2 AITRSIESE B8 Total debt securities issued 36,404,627 41,097,207

TER HEBERT(ZE——F: ZUMNE
1,000,000,0007%& 7t ) T ¥IIA T IAR 36 E A A F1E
T ARBHESRILS - 52RO G2 AT
BEERTEEFRANE - TYIEHIARNIEE
NIARAFEZ LT AN E B0 GKEERA
SHAREE AT TFEHNAMAFFTE AN
B & # /489130004 w( = T — — F:
567,392,000 7T) ©

ZEHEEANRFEIIKRN S BRAFURBERE
ARESREARNBZETNRES) -

During the year, no debt securities (2011: nominal value of
HK$1,000,000,000) were designated on initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. The fair value changes are attributable to changes
in benchmark interest rates for the debt securities designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$48,913,000 (2011: HK$567,392,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes in the

credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities designated as at
fair value.
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BAITRFSIUEHFRZE BRI T ¢ The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:
IR EE A PN
The Group The Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

FEx FHT FEx FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F—H—H As at 1 January 40,312,410 38,470,471 40,312,410 38,748,622
KT Issuance 19,098,302 28,549,278 19,098,302 32,957,267
| Less: Redemption (24,149,259) (26,707,368) (24,149,259) (31,394,008)
SNTC L ZE Exchange difference 6,731 529 6,731 529
ZUMERH Total nominal value 35,268,184 40,312,410 35,268,184 40,312,410
ik R 5 Unamortised portion of discount (129,005) (655,896) (129,005) (655,896)
NEEIFE Fair value adjustment 1,265,448 1,440,693 1,265,448 1,440,693
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 36,404,627 41,097,207 36,404,627 41,097,207

REERITORS Notes issued during the year comprise:

AEFARAEDQF

The Group and

the Company

R EA R 3 R 1T 1T X

MTN

FET

HK$'000

BRI HE Amount issued at nominal value 19,098,302
B U ER FRI0 Consideration received 19,076,997

FIBERTTHHRSFIESHEAEATHEMRTE - All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the Group,
mAITIZEMSIER S ERTE—REZEERIE  and are issued for the purposes of providing general working capital and
BRRMAE - refinancing.
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30. B X ITIRIBIESH

30. Mortgage-backed securities issued

A& H
The Group
2012 2011
FHExT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
T2 W B R AN B R B AR FB I AL MBS at amortised cost under the MBS
18N B FABIE 2 (£ 37) Programme (Note 37) 214,672 367,137
T—H—H As at 1 January 367,137 1,505,650
o e Less: Redemption (152,465) (1,138,513)
FT+=—B=+—H As at 31 December 214,672 367,137

T RBIEAFD NEE AR E - HhE
RNA RSB R F A IRE RS M AT &8
BT F 4B A F210,474,00058 T( = F — — F ¢
528,691,000 7T ) B 15 7 BT & 1T HZAB E F5 H K 47
G (HEE37) e F_EBE——F+—_A=+—BFM=
TE——EF+-A=+—0 " IBECRITIRBIES
A RIELR ©

31. IR

All MBS are collateralised obligation of the SPEs and are issued for the
purpose of providing funds to purchase mortgage portfolios from the
Company. HK$210,474,000 (2011: HK$528,691,000) of mortgage portfolio
are collateralised for the MBS issued (Note 37). As at 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2011, all MBS issued are guaranteed by the Company.

31. Share capital

—E-—FR
—F——fF
2012 and 2011
FER
HK$'000
VERE Authorised
ERREE 1787 3012 E B AR 3 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 3,000,000
BERITRERE Issued and fully paid
SRYEE 17870 2012 % X B A% 2 billion ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,000,000
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32. Efhfig® 32. Other reserves

KEH
The Group

REth& AVEEE X tE & LHER

Contingency  Fair value Hedging Translation J=k}
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
THT T TAT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-_E—F—f—H Asat 1 January 2011 437,435 255,191 (23,757) 9,866 678,735
A EIEA Change in fair value of available-for-sale
KTEERD securities:
— REIW e 5 — net unrealised gains - 107,682 - - 107,682
— HEMTH (T 12)  — realisation on disposal (Note 12) = (51,884) = = (51,884)
— P — amortisation* = 663 - - 663
— B (% 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b) - 9,316) - - (9,316)
— REYUE 8 — — net unrealised gains — jointly
H R ISR controlled entity (Note 23)
(ff£23) = 279 = - 279
P& Rx A Cash flow hedges
—EBERTAMLE — net gains arising from hedges
W B A RO X recognised in other
g 28 comprehensive income - - 2,39 - 2,39
— AUz EMATE  —fairvalue changes transferred to
By income statement — - 10,195 - 10,195
— B (KHHE14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - - 2,078) - 2,078)
HMLEZER Currency translation difference
—HERE — subsidiary = - - 4,829 4,829
— HEEHITR(FE23)  — jointly controlled entity (Note 23) - - - (3,784) (3,784)
Hip e mlka Other comprehensive income - 47,424 10,513 1,045 58,982
BREEH %2R Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
MR 3% 88 50% 3% premium earned from retained profits
75% Z X % to contingency reserve 307,140 - - - 307,140
BXRiE SR EE Release of contingency reserve to
REB RN retained profits (13,013) - - = (13,013)
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AEH
The Group

RE#EE DVEHES X E LR

Contingency  Fair value Hedging  Translation B
reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
FERT FERT TET FET FERL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T-2——F As at 31 December 2011/
+=f=+—-B/ 1 January 2012
~“5-——%#—HF-H 731,562 302,615 (13,244) 10,911 1,031,844
A HETAR Change in fair value of available-for-sale
NFEEE) securities:
— AT E e — net unrealised gains - 357,875 - - 357,875
— HERTH (FE12)  — realisation on disposal (Note 12) - (38,230) - - (38,230)
— P — amortisation * - 39 - - 39
— BIU(FE 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b) = (52,748) - - (52,748)
— RTINS RS — — net unrealised losses — jointly
[ H Tk controlled entity (Note 23)
(fHE23) = (32) = = (32)
PRI Cash flow hedges
— K AR R — fair value changes transferred to
NFEEE income statement - - 5,495 - 5,495
— BT 14()) — tax effect (Note 14(0) - - (907) = (907)
KHLEEDR Currency translation difference
— B AR — subsidiary - - = 914 914
— HEEESE R (FHE23)  — jointly controlled entity (Note 23) - - = 5,276 5,276
& REEHIS AR AR Release of fair value and translation
RER N FEE R reserve upon disposal of investment
LA (FHE23) inajointly controlled entity (Note 23) - @10) - (7,323 7,733)
Hip e mke Other comprehensive income - 266,494 4,588 (1,133) 269,949
BREm % 2R Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
MBS R 72 %41/ 50% 5K premium earned from retained profits
75% = MBS % % to contingency reserve 266,266 - - - 266,266
BRI RHREE Release of contingency reserve to
REB AN retained profits (20,055) - = = (20,055)
F-ZE--F+=8 As at 31 December 2012
Er=10[ 977,773 569,109 (8,656) 9,778 1,548,004
i T SHMFAIEEEEAFEREREEIRHIESE amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
B F e R4 o transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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PiN/NG]!
The Company
WU g% NFEE XA
Contingency Fair value Hedging BAn
reserve reserve reserve Total
FAET FAET FAT FTAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FT-—F2—%—H—H As at 1 January 2011 437,435 255,028 (23,757) 668,706
A B IR A Change in fair value of
RIEZ) available-for-sale securities:
— ALY M 2 E — net unrealised gains - 107,682 - 107,682
— HERZEI — realisation on disposal
(FE12) (Note 12) - (51,884) - (51,884)
— P+ — amortisation* - 663 - 663
— BAIU(FE 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = (9,316) - 9,316)
P& T H Cash flow hedges
—HETEMLE — net gains arising from
WS B TA KON hedges recognised in
G other comprehensive
income - - 2,396 2,396
— BAMERD — fair value changes
NFEEZ) transferred to income
Statement - - 10,195 10,195
— B (FE 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = - (2,078) (2,078)
Hi £ mlas Other comprehensive income - 47,145 10,513 57,658
MR EFEIRT AL Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
NBRZ 428 50%8,  premium earned from retained
75% EX R fE S profits to contingency reserve 307,140 - - 307,140
BARESEEZE Release of contingency reserve to
RE & retained profits (13,013) - - (13,013)
T=F——F As at 31 December 2011/
t+=A=+—-8/ 1 January 2012
—F——"F—H—H 731,562 302,173 (13,244) 1,020,491
AEHEIEANATE  Changein fair value of
Ry available-for-sale securities:
— REI Wz 2 E — net unrealised gains - 357,875 - 357,875
— HERZEI — realisation on disposal
(BE12) (Note 12) - (38,230) = (38,230)
— P+ — amortisation* - 39 - 39
— BRI (HHE14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) = (52,748) - (52,748)
IS RIS Cash flow hedges
— RARERD — fair value changes
NFEED) transferred to income
Statement = = 5,495 5,495
— B (FE 14(0)) — tax effect (Note 14(b)) - - (907) (907)
Hi 4 mles Other comprehensive income - 266,936 4,588 271,524
HIRBEAEIRTHE  Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
NG RFE2R50%3  premium earned from retained
75% ERX R iE S profits to contingency reserve 266,266 - - 266,266
BARESEEZE Release of contingency reserve to
{RER e 7 retained profits (20,055) - - (20,055)
F_E-——-F As at 31 December 2012
+=H=+—H 977,773 569,109 (8,656) 1,538,226

A T U E R o

AEASHTAHEEEFRRERARERIESF  +

amortisation of unrealised loss to income statement on available-for-sale securities
transferred to held-to-maturity securities.
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33 EBEXRALITAIMNERRZS

(a) ARAEMBAIRIKUINCESEERA

FHE - ARRISHBRALIILT

SRS -

SBREXNMEEERERER((FE
SERDHNXZBE TS :

) ZRBEERAEBESERMEZN
RS TARRESE XGRS ATIRE
RERGERERS HT =%
——FHM00TBT(ZE ——
F 100 BTL)AERBEER ' 1
NEARSHZEA

(i) SINCEEELSHFEEERAALT]
RRMH300ZETNBEIER - T =
E——F+_A=+—BHERE
BT ——%F: %)

(i F=FE—=F+=-_A=+—H K
NafER27IZBILTHBINLE
SERRGEHF(ZE—F: 1)
M

(ivy F=ZZF—=%F + A2 A% 11,030
ABT(ZZE——9F:830F87T)
TEBEER EANEEZER
BIRRTITAZA -

SBFNRZSEE TS :

() ARBAMBEROEABA A
= ARMBAROERETR - T
TR A HAN6S0 BT (—
E——F 7807 ET) M TEE
TER

iy F=ZB—=—FARarRMKa &K
EAMWE1272B T (ZFE——4F :
118427370 B BTk

33. Material related party transactions

(al The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong

Kong as Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company
entered into various transactions with the following related
parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (‘HKMA"),
a Government-related entity, included the following:

(i) the Company subscribed to the custodian and clearing
agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets Unit
(“CMU") Service operated by the HKMA and paid HK$1
million (2011: HK$1 million) by way of fees to the HKMA for
such services in 2012;

(i) the Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided the
Company with a HK$30 billion revolving credit facility, and
there was no outstanding balance (2011: HK$ nil) as at 31
December 2012;

(i) the Company held investment of HK$270 million (2011: HK$
nil) in the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills and Notes as at
31 December 2012; and

(iv) the Company paid a secondment fee of HK$10.3 million
(2011: HK$8.3 million) for secondees from the HKMA in
2012.

Transactions with the Government included the following:
(i) the Company rented office premises from The Financial
Secretary Incorporated (“FSI”) and paid a total of HK$6.5

million (2011: HK$7.8 million) rental to the HKMA under the
direction of FSI;

(i) the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$127 million
(2011: HK$118 million) from FSI in 2012;
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206

@iy T=ZF—=F+=ZA=+—H =&
NEFFH LSBT (ZE——F ¢
A2 TT) BAABRFREFNRE -
RISFEN, 7807 B (=T ——F -
1,800 5787L) : &

(iv) RARSBFZITHN  BFESH
AN B AE AN ol B B AR 1 R
T ERITRE N\ RBRRER
WET = EMSETE - FRER
55T FOE AR B FGE 2R 1,00042 78
7T (PfE38) °

S52RHBEAREBRIBERER LA
MR 5B TFIRI

() AARBMBRRFESE iz
SRHYIRIB TR RIS RIS ¢ 2

(i) ERPETEFITHNEEE - 51
NEFHBEANBTRBRBERER
REMES G HORTT - Z1T/0
BRI RIS SRR P RIRIT
¥ BERBEEERAFANLRR
AR TR 2 NIt ERE
HEBHEOHRE °

SRHIERAINR ZE/RNFRABMEL
TTHIRIBIE SR IE AR (HE34) -

(i) the Company held investment of HK$454 million (2011:

HK$460 million) in the Hong Kong Government Bonds as at
31 December 2012 and the interest thereon was HK$17.8
million (2011: HK$18 million); and

(iv) the Company entered into an agreement with the

Government pursuant to which the Government would
provide reimbursement to the Company in respect of the
monetary obligations incurred by the Company in relation
to the 80% guarantee coverage provided by the Company
to banks in respect of facilities granted by them to
enterprises under the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme
("SFGS"), with a total loan guarantee commitment of up to
HK$100 billion (Note 38).

Transactions with HKMC Mortgage Management Limited
(“HMML"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, included
the following:

0)

(if)

the Company provided mortgage insurance cover for
mortgage loans purchased by such subsidiary in the course
of its ordinary business; and

the Company as scheme operator, HMML and various
participating banks as loan originators entered into loan
participation agreements under the Microfinance Scheme
pursuant to which HMML would fund all or part of the
microfinance loans as funding vehicle for the Company.

Transactions with the SPEs included the guarantee cover
provided by the Company for the MBS issued by the SPEs (Note

34).
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REVEEIRIAT -

The balances of the amounts due to and from the relevant
related parties as at 31 December were as follows:

K5H N
The Group The Company
BR B WEAE BiRAT
The Government The Government Subsidiaries Special purpose entities
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
TER THx TAR TiEr TER TATL THR TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RREAARIRI Amounts due from group
(HEE 2270055 24)  companies (Note 22 and note 24) - = - - 3840609 4883648 7,984 161,268
MR AZR Amounts due to group companies - - - - - - 12,497 122
E R FR (H227) Other payable (Note 27) - - - - - - 210474 358,929
stk (E27)  Other liabiliies (Note 27) 4340370 4182266 4,340,370 4,182,266 - - - =
RBIEH I Financial guarantees under the
MEBR MBS Programme - - - - - - 214,742 367,252
RERR 28 Total risk-in-force - - - - 486252 776,614 - -
b EEEEREAR (b) Key management personnel

IEEERNBEERREEAEN RAR
X~ BRI HIARA L ZHAL
BREERSREEAR °

AEETREERARNFHELE

FehAMEHRARN

Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including directors
and senior officers.

Key management personnel compensation for the year
comprised:

2012 2011
FHT
HK$'000

FB
HK$'000

Salaries and other short-term employee

benefits 17,439 15,845
EIEEF Post-employment benefits 1,217 1,088
18,656 16,933

34. FX R BARIEHN

ARAFBEARFIRAR - BBEBRIBILAFRE
(% —) AR A F & Bauhinia MBS Limited # 17 1%
BREFEBIEHRETE - BMmIZARFIZEAA
HIZIBRRAES - RERILAIES A KIEB
RREAENEEXBDBTARARRAMSKRARAL
IEFIA ©

34. Special purpose entities and securitisations

The Company uses two special purpose entities (“SPE”) namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited to securitise
mortgage portfolio that result in the transfer of mortgage portfolio to two
SPEs. These transfers may give rise to full or partial derecognition of the
mortgage portfolio concerned from the Company’s statement of
financial position.
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SANREULHEARBERAERKDICREN
B LR S KL AR AL AR 20 KBS K [ 4R
SL2HA RINRBRFAES -

HARAHERAEMA A EILIRIBERAS -
IAZELLE B P 2 — 20 (MAFLE A7) KBS
KB - BRBIESIR - W2 BHEPL IEFINE
BIRAER - ZERBARBARBES5IEE
FEM S5 HRTKIAIA ©

ANEBA I TRIRA R M AT A 2 E A A
HHRIBIIRAS - NARNBERROIZBIES

RARIRYE S SUEHIE S TR E 0 ARFI R
=E - Y1 B AERLE B EE KR IEHIASE S
RSN S AL TE -

FERBCENERER2)ERE12SEEKE —
FHRARHE » HRIRARI SRR AR KFE
i ERRRFIR A Rl ERR A RIS - MRS it
AFRATE - A THRAaMSRAREN GRS
ITABRKILRIRIBIR - TRARFE L FHIRR
AIME TARBMSRAKRLZIERIA - BEEE
GENERERA2)12RE 125 MENGEITAL
B RRARNIEIBITHAR Z RMEEREZ LR

Bauhinia MBS Limited (Bt 20(a))

Bauhinia MBS Limited (Note 20(a)) -

Full derecognition occurs when the Company transfers its contractual
right to receive cash flows from the mortgage portfolio and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership therein.

Partial derecognition occurs when the Company sells or otherwise
transfers mortgage portfolio in such a way that some but not
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred
but control is retained. These mortgage portfolio are recognised on the
statement of financial position to the extent of continuing involvement.

The majority of mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPEs, that do not
qualify for full derecognition, are MBS guaranteed by the Company.

The rights and obligations that the Company retains from its continuing
involvement in securitisations are initially recorded as an allocation of
the fair value of the financial asset between the part that is derecognised
and the part that continues to be recognised on the date of transfer.

HK (SIC) INT-12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities requires
consolidation of SPES when the substance of the relationships between
the SPE and the reporting entity indicates that the SPE is controlled by
the reporting entity. This results in consolidating back the mortgage
portfolio to the consolidated statement of financial position. The
following summarises the outstanding principal balances of the
mortgage portfolio transferred to the SPE that were derecognised from
the Company’s statement of financial position but were consolidated
back to the consolidated statement of financial position as a result of HK
(SIC) INT-12.

2011

THETT
HK$'000

169,762

208

The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited Annual Report 2012



35. &8 35. Commitments

(a) BA (a) Capital
AEFH R AN E
The Group and the Company
2012 2011
FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERUERITY Authorised and contracted for 3,744 6,977
BHRUEERITSH Authorised but not contracted for 34,011 9,490
37,755 16,467
(b)ZEFHLY (b) Operating lease
TERER - REFEADEHNZLERY Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
201 ) R SR B AR A 2 RS F D T operating lease at the end of the reporting period are analysed
W as follows:
REH ¥ NG
The Group The Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
THET FTET FTHET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
YNl Office premises
R F—4F not later than one year 20,087 19,633 19,847 19,396
LT—%% later than one year and
T ThE not later than five years 12,928 33,007 12,210 32,057
33,015 52,640 32,057 51,453
36. ZIBIRI AL 55 36. Mortgage insurance business

ARRSRAEBRRRRERNERE - 2EZ  The Company operates its mortgage insurance business on a risk-
RS o sharing basis with its approved reinsurers.

T2+ A=1t—0 KRERZFELY  As 31 December 2012, the total risk-in-force was approximately HK$16.6
H166ZBTT(ZF —— 4 1 16642870) * HF  hillion (2011: HK$16.6 billion) of which HK$2.8 billion (2011: HK$2.5 billion)
BIZAET(ZF——%F: 25{ZFT)EAZES  was ceded to the approved reinsurers and the balance of HK$13.8 billion
REG A BIMRBRE - MARBNETEBIRT  (2011: HK$14.1 billion) was retained by the Company.
1382 L (ZF——F 141128 L) IR o
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R TMIRBLZAETL(ZE——F - 141128 7T)
BAARRFEBHXEERERALF - 182F (=
T ——1F : 30128 70) MR RFABIRALE
%31z A AR KBRS 7 T HE R (8] B XU
YEX R - AR RIFTMREB BN - BIEE R
S IR EY XU A AT BEMEAR AR B XU ©

37. BRWAF~

FIRAREHE R~ A ERRIGEIRA T
TR UIREB RIS A E XTI
REATERRIBIES  IEA IR ENTAE
EABTEXRFRAR(GLAERRRBIISFMS -
MARBHERBRA) SLER —HIZBIESFHER
R E L - (TRIZFERN IR R ~r KA

[ ]
g °©

Out of the HK$13.8 billion (2011: HK$14.1 billion) of risk-in-force retained
by the Company, the excess loss of HK$1.8 billion (2011: HK$3.0 billion)
of risk-in-force was hedged through the use of excess-of-l0ss
reinsurance arrangement to reinsure the middle layer risk positions, and
the Company retains a portion of the total risk comprising the first-loss
and remote risk portions.

37. Pledged assets

SPEs have charged their assets as securities or otherwise transferred by
way of security for issuing guaranteed or non-guaranteed MBS in
accordance with the provisions under the relevant securitisation
programmes. The security trustee appointed under the relevant
securitisation programmes will enforce the securities over the relevant
pledged assets when the relevant SPE (and, in the case of guaranteed
MBS, the Company as guarantor) defaults in payment under any series
of MBS or otherwise on the occurrence of an event of default in respect
of any series of MBS.

AR
The Group
2012 2011
FER FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SR Assets pledged
ZieTRAE Mortgage portfolio 210,474 528,691
BHM R Secured liabilities
B ATIRIBIUES (MI)£30) Mortgage-backed securities issued (Note 30) 214,672 367,137

B MIRIB IR A S BIER LA BT AT 8 A9 IF
SRR RS (E34) - BHLHIRIBI A
AIRBREEESSEHE T [TRAS 85
NHIN R R (FE27) ©

FE——F+-A=t+—HBE=ZE—F+=

A=t—BAEEHREARERMTRITERP
ZIBHERISHRIES o

210

Mortgage portfolio pledged included securitised mortgage portfolio
recorded in the SPE's book (Note 34) and the transferred mortgage
portfolio continued to be recognised as assets in “Loan portfolio, net” to
the extent of the guarantee and continuing involvement (Note 27).

No time deposits as at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are
pledged as security deposits with a bank for mortgage guarantee
business in China.
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38. /R BRI R T RIT BYH A
KEERE

REER  ARBTFT_E——FRA=1+—H#%
AR F N EVRBRITR] - EERIRRZRK
o HEH — AR\ IR AR AR B A BT SRAEAR 5T
o BIEEANNA - BEAT A S B RURIE
AR EN N 1,0001Z 7 7T o B LT RIME SR AR =
mATRER AR IR 2R + B2 A T MHERD
Rk A RAERFE - B %R NE %R T R
JF o BT U R A 4EAR 25 T 2 LA LA AB o< B I %%
A BATE2EIBGRE - ARAR ORI ~RNE
EHEABEEEEFX -

BRENMFRINERER~ M0 - WAKEANEGE
et KRB X ERFANRA - BAREHEA
HEBEXTXIRERM - ETARRRZREK
B EEX N7 m - NEEIANE X7~
B RS M AR B T ERAT » B - %7 ey AR
KRB TAREANE = RBFRIKEG ¢ R
BEVRERKIAEN R AT R EES]  FERAR
S ESR -

39. BEMEIRE

EERT T =FNATHARBIAUSHE

38. Special concessionary measures under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme

During the year, the Company introduced a new loan guarantee product
with 80% guarantee coverage under the existing SME Financing
Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) from 31 May 2012 at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate, with an application period of nine months and up to
a total loan guarantee commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable by
the Government. All guarantee fees collected under this special loan
guarantee product are set aside to meet the relevant default claims and
related out-of-pocket expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee
fees, if any, will be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the
Government. The Company is responsible for the operation of the new
product and the applicable day-to-day operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there is no impact on the
consolidated income statement of the Group in respect of guarantee fee
revenue, default claims or any direct expenses involved. Given that the
Company operates only this new product for the Government, the Group
considers the risk and rewards associated with the new product rest
with the Government. Hence, the risk-in-force for this product has not
been included as the Group’s off-balance sheet exposures and no
capital charge is required under the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy
Ratio approved by the Financial Secretary.

39. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 15
April 2013.
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